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Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra, Managing Director
Mr. Mishra joined Apraava Energy in 2002 and has over
20 years of experience in the power industry, both in
India and internationally, mostly involved in project
financing, investment appraisal, finance and accounting
and general management. Before assuming the role of
Managing Director of Apraava Energy, Mr. Mishra held a
variety of senior positions in the Power Industry viz.
Deputy Managing Director / Chief Financial Officer of
BLCP Power in Thailand, Finance Director of PowerGen
India and Finance Director of LG Energy in Seoul, South
Korea.
He serves as the Chairman of Association of Power
Producers (APP) and the Co-Chairman of CII National
Committee on Power. Through these, he plays an active
role in making representations on issues concerning
companies in the Power Sector in India.
Dr. Hina Shah, Independent Woman Director
Ms. Shah is an entrepreneur since 1978 in the field of
plastic packaging. She has transformed her own
entrepreneurial experience into a developmental
initiative, International Centre for Entrepreneurship
and Career Development (“ICECD”), since 1986,
which has facilitated thousands of disadvantaged
women to become entrepreneurial, around the
world.
As a result of her contribution to the field on women
empowerment, she has been a recipient of many
prestigious awards, including awards, the ‘Stree
Shakti Award’ conferred by the President of India for
her contribution in the field of economic
development, the Bharat Jyoti Award, the ‘Titan - Be
More Legend’ and the Best Project Award from the
Project Management Institute. For her prominent
contribution to Socio-Economic Development,

Dr. Hina Shah has also received an award from the
Honorable Chief Minister of Gujarat in 2022. She has
also been recognised at Niti Aayog’s Women
Transforming India Awards. Ms. Shah is FounderDirector and Secretary, ICECD, the Satyameva Jayate
International School, a Director in Limelight Pictures.
She also serves as an Independent Director of Gujarat
Pipavav Ports Limited.
Ms. Urvashi Shah, Independent Woman Director
Ms. Shah is an advocate by profession and practicing
with Income Tax appellate Tribunal since last 16
years. She serves on the Board of Meghmani Organics
Limited as Non-Executive Independent Director.

Mr. Ian Tuft, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
Mr. Ian Tuft has over 3 decades experience in the
Power industry. Currently, he is Senior Director,
Commercial & South-East Asia for CLP Holdings
group. He oversees procurement and is responsible
for contracting strategy, so as to ensure consistent
fuel and non-fuel procurement standards and
processes across the CLP Group.

Mr. Naveen Munjal, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
With nearly 32 years of post-qualification
experience, Mr. Munjal is responsible for all
commercial matters of Apraava Energy's
conventional power business including business
development, Fuel and Power Purchase
Agreements. Mr. Munjal also heads the
Procurement Function for Apraava Energy.
Having spent more than 20 years at Apraava
Energy, he has also led the Finance function for the
India business as its CFO for about 6 years.

Mr. Samir Ashta, Director & CFO
Over 36 years of experience in Project Finance,
Treasury, Investment & Risk Analysis, Accounting
& Taxation and Policies & Compliances. Mr. Ashta
is also the CFO of Apraava Energy.

BOARD’S REPORT
To the Members
The Board of Directors of Jhajjar Power Limited has pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth
Annual Report and the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended
31 March 2022 (“FY”).
1.

BACKGROUND
Jhajjar Power Limited (“JPL” / the “Company”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apraava Energy
Private Limited (“Apraava Energy”) (formerly, CLP India Private Limited). Apraava Energy is owned
jointly by CLP Group, one of the largest investor-owned power businesses in Asia and Caisse de
dépôt et placement du Québec (CDPQ), one of Canada’s leading institutional fund managers. The
Company has built and operates a 1,320 Mega-Watts (“MW”) super critical coal-fired thermal
power plant at Jhajjar in the state of Haryana in India. The Jhajjar power plant has been
operational since FY 2011-12. There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during
the FY.

2.

INDUSTRY AND ECONOMIC SCENARIO
Key trends in thermal power sector
As India moves away from fossil fuel-based energy, annual thermal capacity additions have
witnessed a slowdown over the last 3-4 years. As per the Central Electricity Authority (“CEA”),
3.82 Giga Watts (“GW”) of new coal-based capacity was added against a target of 10.285 GW for
FY 22. However, with 236.10 GW of installed capacity and 1,110 Billion Units (“BU”) of electricity
generation, thermal power continues to dominate the capacity mix and generation mix in the
country, with a share of 59.1% and 75.1%, respectively, in FY 22.
Outlook for FY 23
India Ratings and Research (“Ind-Ra”) has maintained a neutral outlook for the power sector for
FY23, as it believes the overall plant load factor (“PLF”) of thermal power plants will continue to
improve to reach closer to ~60% in the FY. This is given the consistent growth in power demand
and continued dependence on coal-based generation in the absence of any major increase in the
capacity additions in any other sector except renewables. Furthermore, a lower-than-expected
addition in FY23 in renewables would aid the PLF recovery. Ind-Ra also expects the demand
growth to come back to a normal level of 6%-7% in FY23, given a higher base. However, any
stringent lockdowns in case of the emergence of any strong covid wave could derail the growth
in power demand. Ind-Ra also believes that coal availability could pose a risk to the overall
demand and PLF recovery. The domestic coal availability to the power sector would remain
dependent on an improvement in the domestic coal production and its allocation to the power
sector.
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3.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount in INR Million)
Standalone
2021-22
2020-21
34,423
23,984
Revenue from Operations
137
232
Other Income
6,080
6,207
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax
Expense
(2,408)
(2,467)
Less: Provision for Depreciation / Amortisation / Impairment
3,673
3,740
Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense
(1,754)
(2,059)
Less: Finance Costs
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax Expense
1,919
1,680
Add / Less: Exceptional Items (Impairment)
(2,803)
Net Profit before Tax Expense
(884)
1,680
Provision for Tax [including deferred tax (expense)/ saving]
196
(550)
Net Profit after Tax
(688)
1,131
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)
141
9
Total Comprehensive Income (A)
(547)
1,139
Balance of Profit/(loss) brought forward (B)
(4,070)
(5,470)
Balance available for appropriation (A+B)
(4,617)
(4,331)
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on proposed Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve to free reserve
74
261
(retained earnings) (C)
Retained Earnings + Other Reserve (A+B+C)
(4,543)
(4,070)
Particulars

During the year, the Company had undertaken an impairment exercise. Based on the
Management expectations of future cash flows, the terminal value of the plant and the
impairment testing done in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, the Board of
Directors of the Company in FY 2021-22, approved the impairment of the coal fired power plant
of the Company, aggregating INR 2.80 Bn. Net of deferred tax, the impairment was
~Rs. 2.1 Bn. (Refer Note 41 to the Notes to Standalone Financial Statements).
4.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the FY :
•
•

PLF and the loading factor were highest ever since inception at 67.08% and 81.07%,
respectively;
the plant operated with its lowest Auxiliary Power consumption of 6.64% and lowest Specific
Oil Consumption of 0.23 ml/kwh with continued operation of the Flue Gas De-sulphurisation
unit;
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•
•
•
•
•

major overhaul of Unit-II was completed within the budgeted period of 63 days;
the plant achieved 100% ash utilization ;
coal materialization at 92.43% via Rail Mode under Fuel Supply Agreement, was the highest
ever since inception;
a total of 1,146 coal rakes were handled;
since inception of plant, nil demurrage was achieved for the first time.

JPL received the following awards for its operations :
•
•
•
•

CII – ITC sustainability awards 2021 for excellence in domain Environment Management;
“Within the Fence” category for the 15th Edition of CII-National Awards for Excellence in
Water Management 2021;
CLP Holdings CEO HSSE Awards’ 2021;
“Environment Sustainability awards” for Water Conservation efforts by Confederation of
Indian Industry.

While supply of coal from Coal India (through its subsidiaries) was largely in line with the
allocated quantities, given the substantial increase in power demand in the fiscal year 2021-22,
the plant lost availability of approximately 5%. This was mainly on account of prolonged
monsoons impacting coal mining and transportation during the last quarter of the calendar year
2021. The Company is in the process of making claims for lost capacity charges due to nonreceipt of approval for alternate coal procurement.
It must also be recognised that owing to the surge in power demand in the fiscal year 2022-23
coupled with the substantial increases in imported coal prices across the world, the country in
general and power plants in particular have had to contend with lower supplies of domestic coal
vis-a-vis the power demand resulting in a continuous depletion of stocks. JPL had sought
approval from its procurers for procuring alternate coal in the form of Rail cum Road (“RCR”) as
also imported coal; the process of approval has taken some time, but the company has recently
received the approval from its procurers to procure both viz. RCR and imported coal; the
Company is in the process of finalising the arrangements for procurement as on the date of this
report. While it is the company‘s endeavour to avoid any stockouts, it is likely that, given the
current load, the likely demand during the imminent paddy sowing period and the corresponding
domestic coal supplies, that there may be periods of stockouts resulting in potential shut down
of one/both the units till additional coal supplies are received in the form of RCR coal and
imported coal.
5.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the FY, amount of INR 74 Mn. has been transferred to the Free Reserves from the
Debenture Redemption Reserve (amount of INR 261 Mn. was transferred for FY 2020-21).
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6.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the FY, there was no change in the Authorised and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company.
The paid-up Equity Share Capital and Compulsorily Cumulative Preference Share (“CCPS”) Capital
of the Company as on 31 March 2022, was INR 0.2 Bn and INR 23.25 Bn, respectively.

7.

DIVIDEND
The Board has decided not to recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the Company for
the FY in order to conserve the resources of the Company. Further, the provisions of
Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), with respect to transfer of unclaimed
dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund, do not apply since no dividend has been
declared and paid in respect of the equity shares issued by the Company, since its incorporation.

8.

CHANGE OF NAME OF HOLDING COMPANY
An extensive re-branding exercise was undertaken in 2021 by the holding company, including a
change of its name from CLP India Private Limited to Apraava Energy Private Limited. ‘Apraava’
signifies harnessing the power of the elements viz., Agni (Fire), Prithvi (Earth), Ambu (Water) and
Vayu (Air), to create a perfect equilibrium, a balance of resources and work towards a singular
purpose.

9.

LISTED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
The Company’s Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”) issued to the public, are listed on
BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Company had the following series of NCDs issued and outstanding at
the beginning of the FY, i.e. on 01 April 2021:
Bond

1

2

3

Particulars of
the
Debentures
Issued
Privately
Placed,
Secured,
Rated,
Taxable,
Redeemable,
NonConvertible
Debentures

Date of Issue

Date of Redemption

Issue Size

Outstanding as on
01 April 2021

09 April 2015

Series I – 30th April
2025
Series II – 30th April
2026

Series I – INR 2,380
Mn.
Series II – INR 2,380
Mn.

Series I – INR 2,380
Mn.
Series II – INR 2,380
Mn.

28 July 2016

Series I – 28th April
2023
Series II – 30th April
2024

Series I – INR 900 Mn.
Series II – INR 1,300
Mn.

Series I – INR 400 Mn.
Series II – INR 800
Mn.

27 July 2020

27th July 2023

1,000 Mn.

1,000 Mn.

Details of Debenture Trustees and the Registrar and Transfer Agents for the NCDs issued by the
Company, are as under:
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Debenture Trustees
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.
Website: www.idbitrustee.com Tel: +91 22 4080 7000, Fax: +91 22 6631 1776.
e-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com, response@idbitrustee.com
Registrar and Transfer Agents
Kfin Technologies Limited
(formerly known as Kfin Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda
Hyderabad 500 032.
Website: https://ris.kfintech.com/
Tel: +91 040 6716 2222, Fax: +91 040 2300 1153
e-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Pursuant to Section 124 of the Act, there were no cases of unclaimed principal and / or interest
amounts on the NCD’s issued by the Company, which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.
10. OVERVIEW OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
As on 31 March 2022, the Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
11. CREDIT RATING
During the FY under review, Rating Agencies reaffirmed / issued ratings to the Company, as under:
Revision in the credit rating

Instrument

Rupee Long
term Facility
of INR 1,000
crore
Commercial
Paper of INR
800 crore

Name of
the
credit
rating
agency

Date on
which the
credit
rating was
obtained

Original Credit
Rating/Outlook

CRISIL
Limited

25
September
2021

CRISIL AA/Stable

CRISIL
Limited

25
September
2021

CRISIL A1+

Whether
yes / no,
if yes,
date of
revision

No

No

Reasons
provided
by the
rating
agency for
downward
revision, if
any

Revised
credit
rating

Whether
revision
upward or
downward

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable
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Revision in the credit rating

Instrument

Rupee term
loan Facility
of INR 1,967
crore

External
commercial
borrowing of
USD 462 Mn.
Working
Capital
Facility of
INR 1,250
crore
Nonconvertible
debentures
of INR 476
crore
Nonconvertible
debentures
of INR 120
crore
(reduced
from INR 223
crore)
Commercial
Paper of INR
800 crore

Nonconvertible
debentures
of INR 100
crore

Name of
the
credit
rating
agency

India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited
India
Ratings
and
Research
Private
Limited

Date on
which the
credit
rating was
obtained

25
October
2021

Original Credit
Rating/Outlook

IND AA-/Stable

Whether
yes / no,
if yes,
date of
revision

Reasons
provided
by the
rating
agency for
downward
revision, if
any

Revised
credit
rating

Whether
revision
upward or
downward

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND AA-/Stable

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND AA-/Stable

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND AA+(CE)
/Stable

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND AA-/Stable

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND A1+

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

25
October
2021

IND AAA(CE) /
Stable

No

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Assessments to identify risk areas are carried out, from time to time and the Management is
briefed on the potential risks in advance to enable the Company to manage risks through a
properly defined plan. The Company has established and adopted an Enterprise Risk
Management (“ERM”) Framework for identification and mitigation of risks from time to time. The
ERM Framework aids appropriate risk identification, assessment and monitoring practices,
supplemented by a risk reporting framework. The risks are classified as environmental, strategic,
legal & regulatory, financial, operational, people and project risks. The Board is periodically
apprised of the business risks identified and the actions taken to manage them.
The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiencies, protection
and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance
with laws and regulations. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process
for reviewing the design, adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its
systems and processes and compliance with regulations and procedures. During the FY, the
Internal Audit Reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls in the
Company were reviewed by the Board. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate
with the size, nature and operations of the Company.
Further, the Management has reviewed the design, adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Internal Financial Controls of the Company, in accordance with the criteria established under the
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Entity Level Control framework document
based on COSO 2013 framework has been documented. The documentation of process maps, key
controls, standard operating procedures and risk registers has been completed for all the
functions.
Further, during FY 2021-22, Management testing has been conducted on a sample basis for all
key processes. The Internal Controls team has also conducted a review of the Internal Financial
Controls. There are no material unaddressed Internal Financial Control related observations
outstanding as at 31 March 2022. Based on the above, the Board believes that adequate Internal
Financial Controls exist and are effective.
13. HUMAN RESOURCES
Employees make any company good or great. At JPL, it is no different. Each day, the Company
endeavours to create an inclusive workplace culture that provides a purpose-driven experience
to the employees.
The approach of the Company towards people initiatives is to empower its employees and
communities whilst delivering business results with a purpose-driven and inclusive culture.
In its endeavor to build a resilient and sustainable organization, the focus has been on diversity,
equity & inclusion, health & well-being, employee engagement and holistic development.
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The Company believes that high quality service to customers can only be accomplished by
attracting and retaining the best talent, as well as developing, and expanding their skills and
leadership abilities to prepare them for the mega trends shaping in the sector in which the
Company operates. The Company is committed towards strengthening its people policies and
people initiatives.
As an equal opportunity employer, the Company is committed to creating a diverse and inclusive
workplace. Over the years, the Company has strived to make the organisation representative of
the changing demographics we see in the world. We believe a diverse and inclusive workforce
will be instrumental in creating a responsible and sustainable business.
As of 31 March 2022, the Company had 234 employees and the voluntary attrition rate was a
mere 2.5%. During FY 2021-22, significant initiatives were undertaken for the employees.
In the latter part of 2021, the Company undertook an exercise to review and refresh its
competency framework. The behaviors or competencies were defined following intensive
conversations with the leadership team and focus group discussions with many employees. The
redefined leadership competencies shall form the foundation of the efforts for the growth and
development of employees. Further, significant talent development work has been initiated in
the previous year and is currently ongoing for the mid to senior level employees based on the
revised competency framework to address future business needs.
During the FY, an extensive re-branding exercise was undertaken in 2021 by the holding company,
with a promise to put Energy in Action for a better India. Following the corporate rebranding, a
review and refresh of our Purpose | Vision | Mission | Values (“PVMV”) as an organisation was
undertaken. Using the power of ‘Appreciative Inquiry’ and ‘Large-Scale Interactive Processes’
(“LSIP”) the PVMV framework was defined. 90% employees of the Company were part of the
LSIP and contributed to the co-creation of the framework.
The digitalization of the HR function continues to be a strategic priority. After implementation
of the Core HR and Employee Life Cycle Management modules, the Company successfully
implemented the performance and compensation management modules in FY 2021-22.
The entire process cycle of performance management from goal setting to performance
evaluation to salary revisions has been digitized as a result of this deployment.
The pandemic required agility and adaptability and the Company embraced the changes by
implementing flexible working policies, by monitoring the situation on a regular basis. The
second wave of the pandemic was a particularly trying one for the organisation, but it also
brought to the fore the best of the Apraava Energy spirit! In the fight against COVID-19, the
organisation stepped forward and introduced a series of measures to ensure overall well-being
of employees, their families and communities during the pandemic.
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14. SUSTAINABILITY
Energy drives all of us. While we consume it in various forms, it is imperative to be mindful of
the modes of consumption and generation of energy to ensure its continued availability for us
as well as the coming generations. At JPL, we have endeavoured to continuously engage in
responsible utilisation of energy and resources.
The Company is making efforts toward resource conservation and biodiversity protection at its
site by undertaking practices such as, elimination of single-use plastics, energy efficient lighting
at all locations, paperless office operations. A comprehensive biodiversity assessment is
underway for development of a long-term biodiversity strategy over the next two/three
years. Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company follows practices that enable longterm value creation for all its stakeholders while also maintaining a culture of integrity. The ESG
initiatives and policies are aligned with the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) principles on
human rights, labour standards, environment and anti-corruption.
15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is deeply rooted in the Company’s business philosophy.
JPL, as part of its shared heritage of the Apraava Energy group, is committed to protection of
environment as well as social culture. The Company has a CSR Policy that outlines the thrust areas
of focus viz., Education and Training, Healthcare & Sanitation and Sustainable communities. The
CSR Policy contains references to the broad contours of the Company’s CSR programmes. The
Policy is available on the Company’s website, https://www.apraava.com/investor-andcompliance/investor-and-compliance_jpl
During the FY, the Company pursued its CSR programmes despite the uncertainties and the
challenges posed by the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic. To cope with the situation and to
help the country that faced the monumental challenge posed by the pandemic, the Company
partnered with the Confederation of Indian Industry Foundation (“CII Foundation”) and
associated with the District Administration of Jhajjar and Community Health Centre, Jamalpur
to provide COVID-19 support to communities by providing medical and hygiene support viz 100
Oxygen Cylinders, 20 Oxygen Concentrators and 1,000 rapid antigen test kits and other
necessary equipment such as Oxygen Flowmeters, Masks, Oximeters, Gloves, Sanitizers and
thermal guns to the District Red Cross Society. The Company also supported in establishing a
makeshift Covid care facility in Gurugram in partnership with the Government of Haryana.
Under Education and Skill Development, Apraava Scholarships provided financial assistance to
222 students including 151 girls to pursue their further studies. A reputed non-profit, Deepalaya
was identified to operate the newly built youth training academy – Jai Jawan Raksha Academy
(“JJRA”). The academy helps aspirants interested in joining armed / unarmed forces. A fullfledged trained team of professionals are delivering foundational courses for about 50 students.
Sports initiatives continued to train over 300 local youth in Basketball, Wrestling and Athletics
programmes. Under Healthcare and Sanitation, doorstep healthcare services were provided to
9

more than 8,000 people across 12 villages. RO water was supplied to 12 aanganwadi centres and
6 schools and more than 1,200 students benefited from this initiative.
Under Sustainable Communities, JPL in partnership with CII Foundation scaled up the Crop Residue
Management Practice in Haryana cumulatively covering nearly 34 villages across 4 districts and
~45,000 acres of farmland with the aim of making the area free from stubble burning practices.
This will benefit over 11,000 farmers. Key interventions include provision of technological tools
bank, behavioural change training and exploring locally relevant ex-situ options for straw
management. Solar installations were carried out across Jhajjar catchment villages covering JJRA,
mini sports stadium, wresting academy as well as some solar streetlights in cremation facilities.
Solar inverters were also installed in JJRA and wrestling academy. Recognizing the need for water
conservation in nearby villages, JPL partnered with SRIJAN and conducted a feasibility study on
Water Resource Development & Management Strategy, Jhajjar, Haryana. The findings of the study
will help the Company in initiating the first phase of water initiatives in Jhajjar.
In addition to this, cremation facilities were upgraded in Khanpur Kalan and Bajitpur villages from
the unspent CSR account of FY 2020-21. Furthermore, community assets such as development
of ‘Humari Phulwari’ in Village Khanpur Khurd and installation of solar assets in the wrestling
academy were successfully executed. 230 RCC benches were installed across 12 villages. Work
on common water-lifting and pumping station was carried out successfully in Jhamri.
The Annual Report on CSR Activities of the Company for the FY 2021-22 is enclosed as
Annexure ‘A’.
16. HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY AND ENVIRONMENT (“HSSE”)
The strength of the Company comes from its people, who are involved, motivated and take
ownership to provide a safe and healthy working environment at workplace while progressing
towards our vision of ‘zero workplace incidents’. The Company firmly strives to promote
employees’ well-being, ensure recognition, evaluation, and control of any work-related hazard
in a timely manner.
HSSE Management System
The HSSE Policy of JPL is in line with the standards of ISO 45001 - Occupational Health & Safety
Management. Annual audits and inspections are also carried out by the third party to identify
risks, rectify the areas of concern and minimize the risk of occurrence of any accidents at
workplace. During the FY, the plant and the office was assessed by a third party to assure the
health and safety practices being followed in accordance with Policy.
HSSE management system provides a consistent framework for compliance to Group HSSE
regulations. This includes identifying HSSE risks and opportunities, preventing work-related
accidents and ill-health for workers, and maintaining a safe, secure, and healthy work
environment. This also involves the need to manage operations and maintain assets in an
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CASE STUDY: OPERATIONALIZING HSSE DRIVE
The need to have strong HSSE management systems is an imperative for JPL. Leaders in HSSE and Technical
operations are facing tough new challenges in ensuring that the processes are safe, reliable, and sustainable.
Stakeholder expectations for transparency and accuracy in disclosing risks and performance are intense and
the compliance with obligations of established Management Control Procedure (“MCP”) is becoming
increasingly challenging. “Operationalizing” the HSSE management system with standardized business
processes that are consistently executed in day-to-day operations is key to performance management with
both leading and lagging indicators.
Operationalize HSSE Drive is a reality check validation audit for identified 13 critical HSSE management
system practices, to achieve world class HSSE performance at JPL. The aim of this initiative is focused on
four key HSSE aspects:
1. Deep leadership involvement for sustained performance at all levels;
2. Strong linkage between HSSE and Operations;
3. Extend support to existing compliance of HSSE MCPs;
4. Effectiveness measurement of management system performance.
13 ESSENTIALS IDENTIFIED
Fire System
Management

Risk Management
and Elelctrical
Safety

Environment and
Waste
Management

Machine Guarding
and Structural
Integrity

Hazardous
chemical
substance

MOC & Lifting
Operation

Work at height

Work Permit &
KKS Coding

Contractor safety
Management

Process Safety

Vehicle
Management

Confined space &
Emergency

Housekeeping

Captain and his team would complete the audit under mentor's supervision, with mentor calculating and
assessing the team's score. The respective mentors presented the results of their endeavour at the HSSE
APEX meeting. The focus areas were selected and Management was informed of the improvement areas,
with the responsible team ensuring that improvements were made.

environmentally friendly manner. The plant is certified in ISO-45001:2018 and ISO-14001:2015
from Bureau Veritas India.
Awareness Amongst Employees on Health and Safety
The Plant Safety Committee has been constituted in compliance with the Factories Act, 1948 to
identify the risks and ensure that those processes are safe, reliable, and sustainable. The
Committee, chaired by the Plant Head, includes representatives from various departments as
well as contract workers and meets on a regular basis to monitor and analyse the HSSE
performance. Various training programmes are conducted to disseminate knowledge on health
and safety, occupational risks & hazards and preventive measures to minimize the risks.
Safety Dashboard
Parameters

2019-20
Employees Contractors

2020-21
Employees
Contractors

2021-22
Employees Contractors
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Fatalities
Lost time injuries
Occupational
diseases
Total workhours

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
2
0

0
0
0

0
1
0

477,324

3,605,072

474,614

3,786,464

425,739

3,753,605

The Company is constantly reinventing workplace practices to promote the mental and physical
well-being of employees.
Key Health & Safety Initiatives
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

“Operationalize HSSE Drive” for evaluating the effectiveness of 12 key Management Control
Procedure by cross function team under mentorship of Heads of departments.
Implemented “Field Severity Assessment” for the entire plant to identify the focus area of
the plant, risk behavior and unsafe conditions.
Leadership message during various forum & site walk to motivate the entire team for
strengthening the safety culture.
Use of Phased Array Ultrasonic Testing to avoid radiation hazards during unit overhauling.
Improvised Safety Induction facility with advanced Audio Visual, Training Kiosk for general
visitors
Digitization: Well-JPL, Adaptive BBS® & e-SAFE mobile / web-based application launch for
reporting and monitoring the field health, safety observation.
Developed Confined space fitness testing facility for checking the fitness during gate pass
processing.

Action Plan during COVID – 19
The COVID-19 pandemic affected plant operations in various ways, although the generation of power,
being an essential service continued uninterrupted. To mitigate the adverse impact of the pandemic,
possible threats to energy security and such interruptions, the Company has strengthened its ability
to maintain supply security, increase system flexibility, and better integrate its power hardware for
ensuring significant, continuous and consistent power supply.
CASE STUDY: 2021 JPL PLANNED OUTAGE DURING COVID-19
Major Outage was successfully completed for 45 days from 15 February 2021 to 31 March 2021, without any
influence from COVID-19, despite the migration of additional 2200 manpower from various regions around
the country.
Some of the key proactive measures implemented• Quarantine of outage contract manpower for 8 days before entry to the Plant.
• Mandatory COVID-19 RT-PCR negative test report before gate entry.
• COVID-19 RT-PCR testing facility was established near Gate-1.
• COVID -19 RT-PCR testing was done for ~ 2200 nos. contract workforce before entry. Besides this, during
execution phase, RT-PCR testing of working crew was conducted on random basis.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Thermal Screening of all workers prior to plant entry was ensured.
Use of mask was made mandatory for everyone.
Awareness though Public Announcement system and display of Signages.
Regular sanitization of office premises, site locations and residential areas was carried out.
Hand washing and sanitization facilities were established at various locations in the plant.
Additional Temporary Dinning area with drinking water facility were established at 4 locations to ensure
contractors working groups separation.
Additional rest room with toiler facility was established near Boiler to facilitate boiler working crew to
have tea, snacks and water and to avoid frequent movement from Boiler to ground floor.

The safe execution of the outage was HSSE Management's top responsibility, with a special emphasis on
ensuring HSSE compliance during the planning and implementation of the outage activities.

Prioritizing health & well-being of employees
The health, well-being and development of employees is the utmost priority of the Company. Healthy
and engaged employees and contractors contribute to better HSSE Performance. Therefore, health
and wellness programmes on various topics including wellness, volunteering, alcohol and drug abuse
are devised and conducted from time to time.

Strong Work Relationships
A healthy work-life balance and priority
employee engagement is the cornerstone to
building strong employee-employer
relationships.

Encouraging Healthy Habits
Organising special awareness sessions to
emphasise wellness over curative approach,
has helped awareness and enhanced
lifestyle management

Improving Physical and Mental Wellbeing
Periodic health chech-ups, post check-up
follow up and awareness about various
lifestyle ailments is provided.
Mindfulness and stress management
sessions are held time to time to help
employees with their health upkeep.

Fostering a culture of wellness
Under 'Together@Home' contest employees
were encouraged to share their inspiring
lockdown stories on various themes such as
positivity, creativity, kindness etc. and those
were featured on the intranet.
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Digitization Initiatives :
Well-JPL System
Well JPL (OccuCare) is a web-based, enterprise-wide solution for all workplace
health and safety management needs. It provides access to employee health
data to both employees as well as occupational health professionals.
It is a cloud-based software portal (Software as a Service) accessible through
computers and mobiles to manage medical fitness and requirements of the
Factories Act. It also manages wellness-related activities being conducted at JPL.
This helps the Company analyse health and wellness data to guide in future
course of action

Adaptive Behaviour-Based Safety (BBS ®) System
On the National Safety Day event of the Company held on 04 March 2021, a new, adaptive BBS™ cloudbased application was launched with the support of the Company’s business partner, DEKRA, as part of
the digitisation initiatives. BBS programmes contribute significantly to lowering risks and result in better
safety outcomes across industries.
The new, adaptive BBS™ software includes a range of innovative features:
• Simplified observation process: The interface is user-friendly, and the observations can be logged in ten
seconds, while maintaining quality and context.
• Emphasis on feedback: Convenient opportunities to respond to observers; ease of view in observation
statistics and intervention in a timely and targeted manner.
During the FY, the application supported the BBS team in conducting safety contact and spotlight issues
that required barrier removal. The application has helped sustain the effectiveness of the BBS programme
as well as the processes and habits that were created and promoted through the programme.

e-SAFE – Action tracking System
An integration of digital component in safety operations & maintenance function, to ease the process of
capturing the hazards (safety observations) at workplace, through mobile application. The application
helps in on-site and monitoring compliance of action completion status to ensure the safe workplace.

17. DEPOSITS
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the FY, nor has it accepted any
public deposits during the FY. Accordingly, the disclosures required pursuant to Rule 8(5)(iv) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Rule 2(1)(c) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014, are not applicable to the Company.
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18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
The provisions of Section 186 of the Act (excluding sub-section 1) pertaining to granting of loans
to any persons or bodies corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in connection
with loans to any other bodies corporate or persons are not applicable to the Company, since the
Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructure facilities. The Company has not
made loans or given guarantees or provided security to other bodies corporate nor has it made
any investments during the FY.
19. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Samir Ashta (DIN: 01957618), is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and is eligible for
re-appointment. Further, as per Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of the Members is
required by way of a special resolution, for continuation of appointment of Dr. Hina Shah
(DIN: 06664927) as a Non-Executive Independent Director, since she will be attaining the age of
75 years during her current tenure. The Members of the Company may refer to the Notice of the
AGM and Explanatory Statement for the detailed proposals as also the brief resumes of Mr. Ashta
and Dr. Shah. The Board recommends the re-appointment / continuation of appointment of the
aforementioned directors for the approval of the Shareholders.
Further, the Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors, viz.
Dr. Hina Shah and Ms. Urvashi Shah, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided
in Section 149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors have complied with the
Code for Independent Directors as prescribed under Schedule IV to the Act. In the Board’s opinion,
the Independent Directors are persons of high repute, integrity and possess the relevant expertise
and experience in their respective fields. Both the Independent Directors have registered in the online database of Independent Directors by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs and are exempt
from appearing for the proficiency assessment test.
None of the Directors of the Company had any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the
Company during the FY, unless specified elsewhere in this report or the financial statements for the
FY.
There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the FY. Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra,
Managing Director, Mr. Samir Ashta, Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Jayant Patil, Company
Secretary, were the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company during the FY 2021-22.
20. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and of the individual
Directors as well as an evaluation of the working of all the Committees of the Board. With a view
to maintaining high level of confidentiality and ease of doing performance evaluation, the
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exercise was carried out online using a secure web-based application. The Independent
Directors reviewed the performance of the Board, the Non-Independent Directors, the
Chairman as also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
the Company Management and the Board.
The responses received from the Directors on the questionnaires were compiled and shared
with the Chairperson of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee along with the brief
actionables arising therefrom. The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the overall
functioning of the Board, its various Committees and with the performance of other NonExecutive and Executive Directors. The outcome of the Board evaluation was discussed at a
Board Meeting and Board noted that the evaluation results reflected a high degree of
engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Management.
The Board also noted that during the FY, the actionables arising from the Board evaluation for
the FY 2020-21 had been implemented and assimilated in the Board processes. Based on the
outcome of the evaluation and the responses of the Directors, the Board and the Management
have agreed on certain areas / action points for enhancing the performance of the Board which
will be implemented during the FY 2022-23.
21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirms that:
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY 2021-22, the applicable accounting
standards and guidance provided by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
had been followed and that there are no material departures thereof;
b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and cash flows of the Company for the FY;
c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the
FY; and
f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
22. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors to adopt the best practices
and the highest standards of corporate governance through transparency in business ethics,
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accountability to its customers, Government and others. The Company’s activities are carried out
in accordance with good corporate practices and the Company is constantly striving to better
them by adopting best practices.
a.

Board Meetings

The size of the Board is commensurate with the size and business of the Company. As on
31 March 2022, the Board comprised of six directors, as under:
Name of Director

Director
Identification
Number

Category

Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra

00131207

Managing Director

Dr. Hina Shah

06664927

Independent Director

Ms. Urvashi Shah

07007362

Independent Director

Mr. Naveen Munjal

00230313

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ian Tuft

06899871

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Samir Ashta

01957618

Director & Chief Financial Officer

The Board does not have a fixed Chairperson for the Meetings and election of the Chairperson
is done at each Board Meeting.
During the FY 2021-22, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following
dates: 28 May 2021, 24 August 2021, 14 & 15 November 2021 and 11 February 2022. The
details of Directors, their attendance at Board Meetings and at the previous AGM of the
Company are, as under:
Name of Director

Board Meetings
Held
Attended

Whether present at
previous AGM held on
02 August 2021

Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra

4

4

No

Dr. Hina Shah

4

3

No

Ms. Urvashi Shah

4

4

No

Mr. Naveen Munjal

4

4

Yes

Mr. Ian Tuft

4

4

No

Mr. Samir Ashta

4

4

Yes
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b.

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted a CSR Committee and a Funding & Treasury Committee with specific
terms of reference / scope to focus effectively on the terms of reference determined for them by
the Board. The Committees meet at regular intervals depending on the business requirement or
in case of urgent matters take decisions through Circular Resolutions. The Company Secretary
acts as the Secretary to both the Committees.
Further, in view of the notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
dated 19 February 2021, vide an amendment to the definition of a ‘listed company’ in the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Second Amendment Rules, 2021 (the “Rules”),
the Company ceased to be defined as a ‘listed company’ under the Companies Act, 2013 effective
01 April 2021 and accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees of the Board of Directors were dissolved, effective from the above date.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) on 07 September 2021, amended the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”), with
respect to high value debt listed (HVDL) companies. Pursuant to the said amendment, since the
Company has listed on BSE Limited, Non-Convertible Debentures of a value of more than
INR 500 Crores, it was classified as a HVDL entity. The additional compliances pertain to corporate
governance and are on a Comply or Explain basis until 31 March 2023. The Company has begun
to comply with the said requirements in a phased manner. The Company will endeavour to
comply with all the requirements and achieve complete compliance by 31 March 2023. The
Company has, inter alia, constituted certain mandatory committees, as under, to discharge
specific responsibilities as per SEBI LODR:
(i) Audit Committee
(ii) Risk Management Committee
(iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(iv) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The aforementioned Committees have therefore been constituted with effect from
11 February 2022, with a view to include all the governing requirements of the Committees, inter
alia, composition, quorum, terms of reference, meetings, etc., in a single governing document;
charters for most of the Committees, encapsulating the above points, have been adopted by the
Board.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee, as on 31 March 2022, comprised Dr. Hina Shah, as Chairperson,
Ms. Urvashi Shah and Mr. Naveen Munjal. The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”).
During the FY, no meetings of the Audit Committee were held.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as on 31 March 2022, comprised
Ms. Urvashi Shah, as Chairperson, Dr. Hina Shah and Mr. Naveen Munjal. The composition of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in line with the SEBI LODR. During the FY, no
meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee, as on 31 March 2022, comprised Mr. Naveen Munjal,
as Chairperson, Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra and Ms. Urvashi Shah. The composition of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in line with the SEBI LODR. During the FY, no meetings of
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held.
Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee, as on 31 March 2022, comprised Mr. Naveen Munjal, as
Chairperson, Dr. Hina Shah and Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra. The composition of the
Risk Management Committee is in line with the SEBI LODR. During the FY, no meetings of the
Risk Management Committee were held.
CSR Committee
The CSR Committee, as on 31 March 2022, comprised Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra, as Chairman,
Dr. Hina Shah, Mr. Naveen Munjal and Mr. Samir Ashta. The composition of the CSR Committee
is in line with the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Act. During the FY 2021-22, the
CSR Committee met once on 28 May 2021 and all the Members of the Committee as on date of
the Meeting were present thereat.
Funding & Treasury Committee
The Funding & Treasury Committee of the Company was constituted by the Board of Directors
of the Company, at its Meeting held on 12 February 2019. During the FY, no meetings of the
Funding & Treasury Committee were held although matters requiring approvals were
transacted by passing Circular Resolutions.
c.

Secretarial Standards

The Company is following SS -1, i.e., Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors
and SS – 2 i.e., Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. This Annual Report has been prepared based on recommendations provided
in the ‘Guidance Note on Report of the Board of Directors’ issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India under SS – 4 i.e., Secretarial Standard on the Report of the Board of Directors.
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23. COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
The Company has a robust compliance management system which is a comprehensive
framework for monitoring compliances with applicable laws and internal policies. Compliance
reviews take place at multiple levels :
•
•
•

Business and corporate functions ensure implementation of law through checks and
controls in their internal processes
All compliances applicable to the Company are mapped into the Compliance Management
System and are confirmed by the users of the tool, classified as owners and reviewers, at a
prescribed frequency set in the tool, to enable generation of Compliance Reports
The Compliance Management System is updated on a monthly basis and is subject to
periodic audit by the Internal Auditor

24. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. An Internal Committee (“IC”) is in place to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
During the FY, the Company has received 1 complaint of sexual harassment, for which
investigation was ongoing as on 31st March 2022. The IC concluded the investigation and issued
its report in April 2022.
25. AUDITORS
25.1.

Statutory Auditors
M/s B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN 101248W/W-100022) were initially
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 (Five)
years from the conclusion of the Ninth AGM till the conclusion of the Fourteenth AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed their re-appointment for
a 2nd term of 5 (Five) years i.e., to hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing Fourteenth
AGM till the conclusion of the Nineteenth AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027,
which shall be subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing AGM. M/s B S R & Co.
LLP have given their consent for their re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company.
They have further confirmed that their re-appointment, if made, will be within the limits
prescribed under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder (the “Act”) and that they are eligible for the proposed appointment under
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the Act, the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and rules or regulations made thereunder.
The Statutory Auditors’ report for the FY does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclaimer. The Auditors’ Report is published elsewhere in this Annual
Report.
25.2.

Secretarial Auditors
As required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules thereunder, the Board had appointed
Mr. Mahesh M. Darji, Practising Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for the FY. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for the FY does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report is
enclosed as Annexure ‘B’.

25.3.

Cost Auditors
As per section 148 of the Act, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records
conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. The Board had appointed M/s. Kiran J. Mehta &
Co. as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the FY. The Cost Auditors’ Report for the FY does
not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. The Cost Auditors’
Report is enclosed as Annexure ‘C’.

25.4.

Further, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board approved the
appointment of M/s. Kiran J. Mehta & Co. as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the
FY ending 31 March 2023, at a remuneration of INR 0.6 Mn. exclusive of taxes and out of
pocket expenses, which shall be subject to ratification / approval by the Members at the
ensuing AGM. M/s. Kiran J. Mehta & Co. have vast experience in the field of cost audit and
have conducted the audit of the cost records of the Company, as also certain fellow
subsidiaries for the past several years.
P
Internal Auditor
As required under Section 138 of the Act and Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the Board has appointed Mr. Surender Nagarajan, an employee of the Company and a
Chartered Accountant, as the Internal Auditor of the Company.

26. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS
During the FY, none of the Auditors have reported any fraud in terms of Section 143(12) of the
Act.
27. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There have been no material changes or commitments, affecting the financial position of the
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Company, which have occurred between the end of the FY to which the financial statements
relate, i.e., 31 March 2022 and 26 May 2022, being the date of this Report.
28. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the FY, the Company has not entered into any transactions with Related Parties which
are not in its ordinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis and which require
disclosure in this Report in terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act.
Details of Related Party Transactions, as required to be disclosed pursuant to Ind AS 24 and as
required under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
30. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO
30.1 Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption:
A report on the steps taken / impact on conservation of energy, for utilizing alternate sources
of energy, capital investments on energy conservation equipment and the details on
Technology Absorption is enclosed as Annexure ‘D’.
30.2 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Foreign Exchange earned during the FY was Nil. (previous year Nil) and the Foreign Exchange
Outgo during the FY, was INR 24.77 Mn. (previous year INR 31.94 Mn.) (excluding repayment
of foreign exchange loans).
31. ANNUAL RETURN
As required under Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company for
the FY, in e-Form No. MGT - 7, has been placed on the website of the Company and is available at
https://www.apraava.com/investor-and-compliance/investor-and-compliance_jpl
32. VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its Directors / employees / third parties,
including customers and suppliers, to report their grievances and provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of persons (whistleblowers) who use it. The Vigil Mechanism /
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Annexure - A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
Jhajjar Power Limited
1. Brief outline on Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company
The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy of Jhajjar Power Limited (the “Company” /
“JPL”) establishes a common and coherent approach to CSR and facilitates an organized and
efficient deployment of the Company’s resources in order to contribute to the development
of the communities in which it serves. The Company is committed to a socially responsible
corporate growth. It seeks to be an active participant in the social and economic development
of the communities in which it operates, while meeting the interests of all its stakeholders.
The CSR Policy’s vision is that “every child, youth, and adult, has a reason to believe in the
prospect of a better future”, and the Policy articulates the “Implementation Strategy”, which
would guide the Company for implementing its future CSR programmes. The Company
support initiatives that encourage youth and women empowerment as cross-cutting theme
while doing locally relevant programmes. Broader thematic focus areas include Education &
Training, Healthcare & Sanitation and Sustainable Communities. JPL engages in long-term
partnerships with credible national, regional and local community organizations, nongovernmental and charitable organizations. The Apraava Energy group, of which the Company
is a part, focuses on projects or programmes that offer the opportunity for its employees to
be involved and volunteer to make a positive impact on the communities. The Company also
evaluates its community initiatives and the outcome and impact that they could achieve on a
regular basis.
2. Composition of CSR Committee
Sr.
No.

Name of the Member

Designation /
Nature of Directorship

Number of
Number of
Meetings of Meetings of CSR
CSR Committee
Committee
held during the attended during
year
the year
1
1

1

Mr. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra

Managing Director

2

Dr. Hina Shah

Independent NonExecutive Director

1

1

4
5

Mr. Naveen Munjal
Mr. Samir Ashta

Non-executive
Director
Director
and Chief
Financial Officer

1
1

1
1

3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company
https://www.apraava.com/investor-and-compliance/investor-and-compliance_jpl
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4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of subrule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach report)
Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any
Sr.
No.

Financial Year

i.

2020-21

Amount available for set-off
from preceding financial year
(INR)
550,099

Amount required to be set-off
for financial year,
if any (INR)
--

6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5)
INR 1,991,501,528
7.(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5)
INR 39,830,031
7.(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years
Not Applicable
7.(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
Not Applicable
7.(d) Total CSR obligation for financial year (7a+7b+7c)
INR 39,830,031
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8.(a) CSR Amount spent or unspent for the financial year
Total Amount Spent
for the Financial
Year 2021-22
(INR)
22,249,139

Amount Unspent (INR)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as
Account as per Section 135(6)
per second proviso to Section 135(5)
Amount
13,863,492
2,403,170*

Date of transfer
27 April 2022
27 April 2022

Name of the Fund

Amount
Not Applicable

Date of transfer

* Unutilised amount for FY 2021-22 transferred by an implementing partner to the Company’s unspent CSR account

8.(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
1
Sr.
No.

2
Name of Project

3
Item
from the
list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII to the
Act
II

4
Local
Area
(Yes
/
No)

5
Location of the Project

6
Project
duration

7
Amount
allocated for
the project
(INR)

8
Amount spent
in the current
financial year
(INR)

9
Amount
transferred to
unspent CSR
account for
the project as
per Section
135(6) (INR)

10
Mode of
impleme
ntation
Direct
(Yes /
No)

State

District

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1 year

4,726,663

2,307,858

2,418,805

No

11
Mode of
Implementation –
Through Implementing
Agency
Name
CSR
Registrati
on no.

1

Coaching center for aspirants
of armed and unarmed forces
(Jai Jawan Raksha Academy)

Deepalaya

2

Improvement/maintenance of
sports infrastructure in nearby
villages- Upgradation of Mini
Sports Stadium

VII, X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

6 months

1,100,000

313,813

7,86,187

Yes

Not Applicable

3

Construction of CowshedSalhawas for stray cattle

X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

9 months

3,000,000

870,667

2,129,333

Yes

Not Applicable
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CSR0000
0584

4

Tree plantations,
developments and
maintenance and Developing
Humari Phulwari (Village
Garden)

IV, X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1 year

2,385,440

258,782

2,126,658

Yes

Not Applicable

5

Construction of cremation
ground in Akehari Madanpur

X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

6 months

2,500,000

1,915,763

584,237

Yes

Not Applicable

6

JPL-CII joint project-Crop
Residue Management

IV

Yes

Haryana

6 months

3,347,400

0

3,347,400

No

7

Education support in schools
and Aanganwadis

I, II

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar,
Rohtak,
Sirsa,
Fatehabad
Jhajjar

1 year

600,000

80,128

519,872

Yes

Not Applicable

8

Promotion of SportsWrestling, Athletics and
basketball promotion
program, village level wrestling
tournaments and sports
scholarship

II, VII

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1 year

3,780,000

1,829,000

1,951,000

Yes

Not Applicable

9

Covid-19 support to
communities

I, XII

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1 year

10,000,000

7,596,830

2,403,170

No

TOTAL

31,439,503

15,172,841

CII
Foundation

CII
Foundation

16,266,662
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8.(c) Details of CSR amount spent other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1
Sr.
No.

2
Name of Project

3
Item from the
list of activities
in Schedule VII
to the Act

4
Local
Area
(Yes/
No)

5
Location of the Project
State

District

6
Amount spent
for the project
(INR)

7
Mode of
implementati
on Direct
(Yes / No)

8
Mode of Implementation – Through
Implementing Agency

Wockhardt
CSR00000161
Foundation
Not Applicable

1

Mobile Medical Van

I

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1,826,734

No

2

Livestock Promotion Program

IV, II

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

290,400

Yes

3

Water conservation initiatives
feasibility study and phased
intervention in nearby villages

IV, X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

985,300

No

4

Apraava Scholarship Program

II

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1,999,635

Yes

5

Solar Lighting in government
schools/community places

IV, X

Yes

Haryana

Jhajjar

1,974,229

No

TOTAL

Name

CSR Registration
no.

Srijan

CSR00001911

Not Applicable
Selco Foundation

CSR00002487

7,076,298

8.(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
INR 1,925,790
8.(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
Not Applicable
8.(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)
INR 40,441,591
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8.(g) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sr.
No.

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Particulars

Amount (INR)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Total amount spent for the Financial Year
Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

3,9830,031
40,441,591*
611,560
Nil
611,560

* includes an amount of INR 13,863,492, earmarked for on-going pro/jects and transferred to the Unspent CSR Account in terms of Section 135(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the financial Year 2021-22

9.(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sr.
No.

1

Preceding
Financial
Year

FY 2020-21
TOTAL

Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR
Account under
section 135 (6)
(INR)
8,088,716
8,088,716

Amount spent
in the
reporting
Financial Year
(INR)
8,086,259
8,086,259

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if
any.
Name
Amount (INR)
Date of
of the
transfer.
Fund
Not Applicable

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
financial
years. (INR)
2,457
2,457
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9.(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
1
Sr.
No.

2
Project
ID

3
Name of Project

4
Financial Year
in which the
project was
commenced

5
Project
duration

6
Total
amount
allocated for
the project
(INR)

7
Amount spent
on the project
in the
reporting
Financial Year
(INR)

8
Cumulative
amount
spent at the
end of
reporting
Financial
Year (INR)

9
Status of the
project
(Completed
/Ongoing)

1

--

FY 2020-21

6 months

6,792,094

936,151

6,789,792

Completed

2

--

FY 2020-21

6 months

1,031,320

986,480

1,031,320

Completed

3

--

FY 2020-21

6 months

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Completed

4

--

FY 2020-21

1 year

822,157

399,694

822,042

Completed

5

--

FY 2020-21

1 year

2,603,731

418,331

2,603,731

Completed

6

--

FY 2020-21

1 year

1,421,955

998,203

1,421,915

Completed

7

--

Jai Jawan Raksha
Academy Phase II
Construction &
Maintenance
Installation of RCC
Garden Benches
Upgradation of Krishna
Akhara (Wrestling
academy)
Upgradation of Humari
Phulwari
Upgradation of
Cremation facilities
Construction of common
water lifting and pumping
station
Crop Residue
Management Project
Phase III

FY 2020-21

6 months

6,694,800

3,347,400

6,694,800

Completed

20,366,057

8,086,259

20,363,600

TOTAL
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year
Not Applicable
(asset wise details)
a.
b.
c.
d.

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).
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Mahesh M. Darji
Practicing Company Secretary

B.Com.

DBM,

ILB,

FCSs

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
March 31, 2022
For the Financial Year Ended
2013 and
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act,
and Remuneration of Managerial
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Jhajjar Power Limited

Unit No. T-15 B, Salcon Ras Vilas,
3rd Floor, Plot No. D-1, Saket District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi 110 017
Dear Sir/ Madam,
statutory

applicable
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
Governance
practice by Jhajjar
provisions and the adherence to good Corporate
was conducted
Audit
Secretarial
Power Limited (hereinafter called "the Company").
the corporate conducts
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
thereon.
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
of

Based

on our

verification of the

Company's books, papers,

minutes books, forms and

maintained by the Company
regulatory authorities and other records
its officers, agents and authorized
and also the information provided by the Company,
our
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
representatives during the conduct of
ended
financial
year
the
during
Company
has,
opinion,
the
and also that
hereunder
listed
March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions
in
mechanism
place to the
and compliance
the Company has proper Board processes
the reporting made hereinafter
extent, in the manner and sybject to
returns filed with

minutes
that maintenance of proper and updated books, papers,
with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining
books, filing of forms and returns
Our
of management and of the Company.
other records is the responsibility
before
content of the documents and returns produced
responsibility is to verify the
and report
evaluation of the content in respect of compliance

We further

report

us, make

objective

thereon.
minutes books, forms and returns
We have examined on test basis, the books, papers,
and produced before us for the
filed and other records maintained by the Company
to the provisions of
financial year ended March 31, 2022, according

MAHES,
SH DARJ
FCS 7175
*

COMPANY
C/o 211,
of Old

Bldg. No.1,

Sona

Udyog

Nagardas Road, Andheri

Industrial Estate,

(East), Mumbai

-

Parsi

400

069,

Panchayat Road,

(M) +91

26os22

ECRETA

CP 7809

Extn.

9819196693
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()

The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under

(i)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made

thereunder
(ii)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there

under,
iv)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct

Investment (ODI)) and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB), to the extent

applicable to the Company
(vThe following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;
(6)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (to the extent applicable);

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars

an Issue and

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act

and dealing with client.

(d)

The Securities and

(Listing Obligations

and

Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of

Debt

Exchange

Board of India

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(e)

The Securities and

Securities) Regulaions,

2008,

and
in-principally verified systems and mechanism which is in place
followed by the Company to ensure Compliance of other applicable Laws like Labour

We have also

Laws, etc. (in addition to the above mentioned Laws) as applicable to the Company).
and its Officers in
We have also relied on the representations made by the Company
the
Company for compliances
and mechanism formed/ followed by
of

respect systems
of other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations and found the satisfactory operation
of the same.
We have also examined

(a)

compliance with the applicable clauses of.

Institute of
Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the
and
Secretaries of India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013;

Company

H DARJ
26los22
C/o 211, Bldg. No.1, Sona Udyog Industrial Estate, Parsi Panchaya
of old Nagardas

Road,

Andheri

(East),

Mumbai

-

400

069,

(M) +91

FCS 7175

CP 7809
CRETAR
Extn

ANY
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(6) The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited

We further Report that, during the year, either there was no event attracting the below
mentioned provisions nor it was mandatory on the part of the Company to comply with

the following Provisions, Regulations/ Guidelines
Shares and
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares

Regulations, 2009;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,
1998;
Based on the above said information provided by the Company, we report that during
the financial year under report, the Company has substantially complied with the

provisions of the above mentioned Act/s including applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

the
as

mentioned above and we have no material observation of instances of non-compliance

in respect of the same.
We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. During the
year, there

were no

changes

in the constitution of Board.

We also report that adequate notice/s were given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda and the same was sent at least seven
days in advance and short notice in case of urgency, and a reasonable system exists
for Board Members for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Based on the representation made by the Company and its officer, we herewith report
that the majority decision is carried through and we have been informed that proper
system is in place which facilitates / ensures to capture and record, the dissenting
member's views, if any, as part of the minutes.

MAHES
SH DAR
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Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officers explaining us in
respect of intenal systems and mechanism established by the Company which
ensures compliances of other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company,
we report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period under review, there was no specific event

action having a major bearing on the Company's affairs.
Note: This Report is to be read along with attached Letter provided as "Annexure - A".

Mahesh M. Darji
Company Secretary in Practice
FCS:7175
CP: 7809
Peer Review No. 2061/2022
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Note: This Report has to be read with "Annexure -A".
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ANNEXURE A

To

The Members,
Jhajjar Power Limited

Unit No. T-15 B, Salcon Ras Vilas
3rd Floor, Plot No. D-1, Saket District Centre,
Saket, New Delhi 110017

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Sub: Our Report of even dateisto be read along with this letter.
the management of the
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of
reCords
on these secretarial
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
based on our audit.
obtain
as were appropriate to
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes
secretarial
the
the contents of
reasonable assurance about the correctness of
basis
(by verifying records as was made
records. The verification was done on test
reflected in secretarial records. We
available to us) to ensure that correct facts are
followed provide a reasonable basis
believe that
processes and practices, we

the

for our opinion.
and appropriateness of financial records and
3. We have not verified the correctness
and we rely on Auditors Independent
Books of Accounts of the Company
Assessment on the same.

4. Wherever

required,

compliance of laws,

about the
have obtained the Management representation
etc.
of
events,
rules and regulations and happening

we

of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
5. The compliance of the provisions
of management. Our examination was
regulations, standards is-the responsibility
the Company to ensure adequate
limited to the verification of process followed by

compliance
Lockdown situation, we have relied
6. Due to COVID-19 outbreak and
as provided
details, data, documents and explanation

information,

the
the

on

by

AESH DAR
DAR
FCS 7175
CP 7809

RETARY

C/o 211, Bldg. No.1, Sona Udyog Industrial Estate, Parsi PANvaEOR
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MA

26os 22

xn.

96693
-

37

Mahesh M. Darji
Practicing Company Secretary

B.Com. DBM, LLB,

FCS

Company and its officers and agents in electronic form without physically verifying
at their office.
7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company

nor

of the

efficacy

or

effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company.

Mahesh M. Darji
Company Secretary in Practice
FCS:7175
CP: 7809
Peer Review No. 2061/2022
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B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Telephone: +91 22 6257 1000
Fax:
+91 22 6257 1010

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063, India

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Jhajjar Power Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Jhajjar Power Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the financial statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Registered Office:
B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP
(a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063
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Description of Key Audit Matter
Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is engaged in business of generation
and supply of electricity. The carrying value of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets amounts to Rs. 33,160.48 million and Rs.
6.71 million respectively as at 31 March 2022.

Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal controls and substantive procedures which
included the following:

The Company performs an annual assessment to
identify any indicators of impairment of the 
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at cash generating unit (‘CGU’) level to
identify any indicators of impairment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU which is
based on value in use (‘VIU’) has been derived 
from discounted forecast cash flow model
amounting to INR 43,945.00 million and provision
for impairment loss of INR 2,803.00 million has
been recognised in the financial statements during

the year ended 31 March 2022.
The model uses several key assumptions.
Considering the inherent uncertainty, complexity 
and judgment involved and the significance of the
value of the assets. Impairment assessment of the
above-mentioned assets has been considered as a

key audit matter.
Refer notes 2(b)(vi), 3, 4 and 41 to the
financial statements.



Tested design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process;
We assessed internal and external sources of
information used by the Company to determine
that there are indicators of impairment;
Assessed the Company’s evaluation
identification of cash generating unit;

of

Obtained the Company’s assessment of the
recoverable value of the CGU basis the VIU
calculated by the Company and assumptions
used to determine the recoverable value;
Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash
flow projections and impairment assessment
made by the Company;
Involved internal valuation specialist to test the
appropriateness of the calculation and the
critical assumptions used by the Company;
Assessed and challenged the Company’s key
assumptions used in determining VIU through
historical information, budget / projections and
other relevant information;
Assessed the adequacy of measurement
recognition and disclosure of impairment loss
in the financial statements of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Litigation matters
The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is involved in various legal claims,
which could have a significant impact, these
claims were to materialise. It is not unusual for
legal cases to remain outstanding for a number of
years. We have identified legal claims as a key
audit matter since it requires management to

Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal control and substantive procedure which
included the following: 

Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of relevant internal controls implemented by
management;
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exercise significant judgement in determining the 
appropriate accounting treatment.
Refer notes 2(b)(xii) 37 and 44 to the
financial statements.

Assessed the management’s position through
discussions with the in-house legal expert and
external legal opinions obtained by the
Company (where considered necessary) on
both, the probability of success in the aforesaid
cases, and the magnitude of any potential loss;



Discussed with the management on the
development in these litigations during the
year ended 31 March 2022;



Obtained
direct
independent
legal
confirmation letters from the company’s
external counsels to confirm the fact of the
claims and corroborative evidence that
supports basis for management’s response;



Assessed the objectivity and competence of the
Company’s legal counsel involved by the
Company;



Assessed the appropriateness of provisions and
considered the impact of the procedures
performed above on the financial statements
and whether the disclosures therein are in
accordance with the relevant Ind AS.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
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(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.
(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 37 and Note 44 to the financial statements.
b) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer
Note 13, Note 14(b) and Note 32 to the financial statements.
c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall:


directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or



provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall:


directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or



provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.
e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022

Amar Sunder
Partner
Membership No. 078305
UDIN: 22078305AJQBVJ4269
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of Jhajjar Power Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)
(i)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant
and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets or both during the year.
(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during the
year. For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records.
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. In the case of one class of inventory (i.e. Coal) the
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were more
than 10% in the aggregate and these have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company. Further,
as explained in Note 45 (ix) of the financial statements, we noted that with respect to one bank the
Company has submitted details of inventory of stores and spares (excluding more than 6 months
old items) being inventory which is considered a pre-requisite to the operations of plant and is
therefore different from the total inventory of store and spares in the books of account.

52

B S R & Co. LLP

(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or
provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable.

(v)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of its manufactured goods (and/or services provided by it) and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether
these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value
added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into
Goods and Services Tax.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund,
Income-Tax, Employees’ State Insurance, duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax
(‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:
Name of the
Statute
Income-tax
Act, 1961

Nature of the dues

Amount
(Rs. in
millions)

Amount paid
under protest
(Rs. in millions)

Discrepancy on account of PF/ESI as
per ITR and Tax Audit report

-

-

Period to which
the amount
relates
Assessment year
2018-20191

Forum where
dispute is
pending
Commissioner
of Income-Tax
(Appeals)
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Income-tax
Act, 1961

Discrepancy on account of Book
Profit as per ITR and Tax Audit
report

Income-tax
Act, 1961

MAT adjustment of unabsorbed
depreciation or brought forward loss

Income-tax
Act, 1961

Disallowance of excess employee
expense

-

-

Assessment year
2018-20192

Commissioner
of Income-Tax
(Appeals)

248.72

-

Assessment year
2018-20193

Commissioner
of Income-Tax
(Appeals)

-

-

Assessment year
2017-20184

Commissioner
of Income-Tax
(Appeals)

1

During the earlier year, the Company has received an intimation on account of difference in disallowance
of PF/ESI contribution as per ITR and Tax audit report. There was no tax demand due to adjustment of the
disallowance with brought forward tax losses. The Company has filed an appeal against the order before
Commissioner of Income-Tax (Appeals) CIT(A).
2

During the earlier year, the Assessing Officer while processing the return of Income u/s 143(1) has
computed the book profit by adding the 1/5th of the Ind AS transition amount. There was no tax demand due
to adjustment of the disallowance with brought forward tax losses. The Company has filed an appeal against
the order before CIT(A).
3

During the current year, the Assessing officer while passing the assessment order has disallowed the
deduction amounting to Rs. 1,064.96 million on account of lower of unabsorbed depreciation and brought
forward loss.

4

During the earlier year, the Assessing officer had issued order under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961,
pertaining to assessment year 2017-18, where salary expenses amounting to Rs. 45.56 million was
disallowed. There was no tax demand due to adjustment of the disallowance with brought forward tax losses.
The Company has filed an appeal against the order before CIT(A).

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used
for long-term purposes by the Company.
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(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined
under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.
(f) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined
under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.
(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
(xii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.
(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.
(xvii)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than ongoing
projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special
Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with Section
135(6) of the said Act.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022

Amar Sunder
Partner
Membership No. 078305
UDIN: 22078305AJQBVJ4269
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Jhajjar Power
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jhajjar Power
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022

Amar Sunder
Partner
Membership No. 078305
UDIN: 22078305AJQBVJ4269
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Jhajjar Power Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars
A. Cash flows from Operating Activities :
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment provision of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Finance costs
Interest income on fixed deposit
Interest income on others
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) (net)
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required
Premium /other cost on derivatives
Inventory written off
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Corporate guarantee commission charges - Non-cash
Derivative at FVTPL (Gain)/Loss
Operating profit before Working Capital changes

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
(884.37)

1,680.43

2,407.55
2,803.00
1,754.25
(5.46)
(12.92)
172.71
(0.36)
37.11
37.31
5.74
22.85
(78.47)
6,258.94

2,467.47
2,059.08
(20.27)
(8.39)
(161.70)
(5.28)
119.83
47.02
0.25
21.29
250.54
6,450.27

6,879.90
1.56
26.10
(73.57)
(1.30)
(10.73)
(7,759.28)
57.90
50.40
(111.96)
1,034.86
93.88

(2,067.85)
7.21
(11.02)
(19.16)
(12.10)
0.41
2,136.52
(94.16)
95.16
190.76
380.66
606.43

6,352.82
(24.94)
6,327.88

7,056.70
157.46
7,214.16

(271.15)
0.91
5.46
(264.78)

(156.28)
1.04
20.27
(134.97)

(2,586.28)
173.66
38.29
(1,989.85)
(266.75)
(1,674.97)
(6,305.90)

(6,741.82)
2,350.00
280.07
345.16
(1,069.94)
(309.57)
(1,856.04)
(7,002.14)

(242.81)
596.32
353.51

77.05
519.27
596.32

Adjustments for changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities :
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase in provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease in other current financial liabilities
Decrease in other non-current financial liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
Decrease/(Increase) in other current financial assets
Decrease in other non-current financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in inventories
Net change in working capital
Cash generated from Operations
Taxes (paid)/refund received
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)
B. Cash flows from Investing Activities :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income on fixed deposits
Net cash used in investing activities (B)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from settlement of derivatives other than interest rate swaps
Proceeds from settlement of derivatives other than interest rate swaps
Repayment of current borrowings (net)
Repayment on settlement of interest rate swaps
Interest and financial charges
Net cash used in financing activities (C)
D. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (D+E)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise the following:
Cash on hand
Cheques on hand
Bank balances
- In current accounts
Total

0.14
-

0.17
0.10

353.37
353.51

596.05
596.32
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Jhajjar Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in Rs. Million)

Note 1: Company Information
Jhajjar Power Limited ("Company") has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act on 9 April 2008 (CIN U40104HR2008SGC037809) and its debentures are listed on
the Bombay Stock Exchange. Jhajjar Power Limited is engaged in the business of generation and sale of electricity. The Company has set up 1320 MW thermal power plant at Jhajjar, Haryana.
The first unit and second unit (660 MW each) has been commissioned on 29 March 2012 and 19 July 2012 respectively.
Note 2(a): Basis of preparation
(i)
Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), relevant
provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The financial statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 May 2022.
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in note 2 (b).
(ii)

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for the following:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) - Measured at fair value;
- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability- Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations
(iii)
Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in India Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest million, unless otherwise
stated.
(iv)
Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows:Note 30: Judgement required to ascertain whether an arrangement contains a lease and to ascertain lease classification.
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:Note 29: Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 2(b)(ix) and 2(b)(x) : Measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment and useful life of intangible assets;
Note 27: Estimate required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets and availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;
Note 31: Fair value measurement of financial instruments;
Note 37 : Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Note 2(b)(vi), 3 and 41: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markets transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
Note 2(b)(ii), 5 and 10(a) : The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.
(v)
Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
Measurement of fair values
(vi)
A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant
fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.
The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which the value the valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company's audit committee.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
-Level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
-Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
-Level 3 : inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of fair value of hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.
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The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 31 (Financial instruments).
Note 2(b): Significant accounting policies
(i)
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates when the fair value was measured. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss, except exchange
difference arising from the translation of the following items which are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI):
- qualifying cash flow hedge to the extent that the hedges are effective.
(ii)
Financial instruments
a.
Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
b.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets:
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
-amortised cost;
-FVTPL
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrecoverably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirement to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminate or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in profit or loss. However, see note 2(b)(ii)(e) for derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost at effective interest rate. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairments are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as measure at cost amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a derivative and it is
designated as such on initial recognition. For financial liabilities at FVTPL any net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. See note 2(b)(ii)(e) for derivatives designated as hedging instruments.
c.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfer assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not recognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.
d.
Offsetting
Financial assert and financial liabilities are offset and net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only when the group has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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e.
Derivative Financials Instruments and Hedge Accounting
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures.
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.
The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instruments are expected to offset each other.
f.
Cash Flow Hedges
When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in OCI and accumulated in the other equity
under ‘cash flow hedging reserve’. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The Company designates only the change in the fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts and the change in intrinsic value of options as the hedging instrument in cash flow
hedging relationships. The changes in fair value of the forward element of forward exchange contracts and the changes in the time value of options are separately accounted for as a cost of
hedging and recognized separately within equity.
iii.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services.
• Revenue from sale of electricity - The Company supplies electricity to customers in accordance with the Power Purchase Agreement ('PPA'). The supply takes place on continuous basis
throughout the year. Customer pays for the electricity on a monthly basis in two tranches (separately for provisional and final bill raised subsequent to the relevant month by the Company).
Revenue is recognised as electricity is supplied as per the terms of the PPA based on the tariff rate as specified in PPA, net of rebate offered and other adjustments.
• Revenue from sale of fly ash - The Company sales fly ash generated in electricity generation. The revenue from sale of fly ash is recognized when the customer takes possession of the material.
Fly ash sale is invoiced as per the price agreed with different customers.

iv.
Income taxes
Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
(a) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any relating to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
enacted for the relevant reporting period.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis.
(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the probability of deferred tax asset.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

v.
Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset if the customer has both of the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset.
As a Lessor
For the Company as a lessor, leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to the customer, are
classified as operating lease arrangements. The respective lease assets are included in the financial statements according to their nature. Operating lease payments which vary with operation
parameters are recognised as other revenue in the period in which they are earned.
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.
As a Lessee
The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on
which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include
fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
vi.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Where impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

vii.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
viii.
Inventories
Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost for the purpose of valuation of fuel and stores and spares are determined on weighted average basis. Cost of inventories
comprise all costs of purchase after deducting non refundable rebates and discounts and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the weighted average cost basis. Net realizable value ("NRV") is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. NRV for stores and spares and fuel used in generation of electricity, are not written down below cost except in cases
where the price of such materials have declined and it is estimated that the cost of generating the electricity will exceed its selling price. Where necessary, due allowance is made for all
damaged, obsolete and slow moving items.
ix.
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
Capital work-in-progress
Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company, on transition to Ind AS, had elected to continue with the carrying value under previous GAAP for all of its property, plant and equipment and use
that as its deemed cost.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Depreciation on assets other than Plant & Machineries used in generation of electricity is provided on a pro-rata basis on ‘Straight Line Method’ over the estimated useful lives
of the said assets which are similar to the rates prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The useful lives of plant & machinery have been determined based on technical
evaluation done by the management's expert which are different than those specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual
value are not more than 5% of the original cost of assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Asset Head
Management estimate of useful life
Useful life as per schedule II
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Computers and office equipment
Vehicles

10-60 years
5-30 years
5-10 years
3-6 years
8 years

10-60 years
10-40 years
10 years
3-6 years
8 years
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x.
Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets
can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure on intangible assets is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss, as incurred.
As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company, on transition to Ind AS, had elected to continue with the carrying value under previous GAAP for all of its intangible assets and use that as its
deemed cost.
Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5 years using the straight-line method. Amortisation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for
assets purchased/ disposed off during the period.
Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

xi.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
period of time to get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
xii.
Provisions and contingent liabilities and assets
Provisions
Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period.
Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

xiii.
Employee benefits
(a). Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
(b). Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
(c) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(A) defined benefit plan such as gratuity; and
(B) defined contribution plan such as provident fund.
Defined benefit plans
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.
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Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.
Defined contribution plan
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

xiv.
Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

xv.
Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the
Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
xvi.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other gains/(losses).
xvii
Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million upto two decimals as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
xviii.
Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23
March 2022 MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from I April 2022, as below:
Ind AS 16- Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its
recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.
Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.
Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Gross carrying amount
Particulars

As at
1 April 2021

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses

Additions during the Disposals/ capitalised
during the year
year

As at
31 March 2022

As at
1 April 2021

Depreciation
for the year

Disposals during the
year

Impairment during
the year

As at
31 March 2022

Net carrying amount
as at 31 March 2022

Land (freehold) (Refer note 1 below)
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Computers
Vehicles

3,225.61
6,550.61
43,095.77
52.23
79.05
84.00
74.59

42.22
176.59
2.69
2.92
28.34
4.50

15.77
3.06
1.21
0.92
2.24

3,225.61
6,592.83
43,256.59
51.86
80.76
111.42
76.85

1,446.95
13,423.53
33.82
44.42
51.79
44.96

239.13
2,130.01
4.97
7.96
13.33
10.91

12.17
2.38
1.04
0.44
1.61

416.60
2,375.35
1.31
2.61
3.04
2.39

2,102.68
17,916.72
37.72
53.95
67.72
56.65

3,225.61
4,490.15
25,339.87
14.14
26.81
43.70
20.20

Total

53,161.86

257.26

23.20

53,395.92

15,045.47

2,406.31

17.64

2,801.30

20,235.44

33,160.48

Capital work-in-progress

94.74

350.26

259.52

185.48

-

-

-

-

-

185.48

Total

94.74

350.26

259.52

185.48

-

-

-

-

-

185.48

Gross carrying amount
Particulars

As at
1 April 2020

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Additions during the Disposals/ capitalised
during the year
year

As at
31 March 2021

As at
1 April 2020

Depreciation
for the year

Disposals during the
year

Impairment during
the year

As at
31 March 2021

Net carrying amount
as at 31 March 2021

Land (freehold) (Refer note 1 below)
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Computers
Vehicles

3,225.61
6,535.23
42,995.60
52.00
75.25
80.68
66.10

15.38
100.86
1.03
4.97
3.32
10.02

0.69
0.80
1.17
1.53

3,225.61
6,550.61
43,095.77
52.23
79.05
84.00
74.59

1,202.22
11,238.36
29.00
36.32
41.53
34.52

244.73
2,185.71
5.56
9.20
10.26
10.96

0.54
0.74
1.10
0.52

-

1,446.95
13,423.53
33.82
44.42
51.79
44.96

3,225.61
5,103.66
29,672.24
18.41
34.63
32.20
29.64

Total

53,030.47

135.58

4.19

53,161.86

12,581.95

2,466.42

2.90

-

15,045.47

38,116.39

76.85

153.45

135.56

94.74

-

-

-

-

-

94.74

76.85

153.45

135.56

94.74

-

-

-

-

-

94.74

Capital work-in-progress
Total

Notes:
1. Original title deeds of freehold land is held by Power Finance Corporation Limited as security agent on behalf of lenders of the Company.
2. Refer note 14(a) for property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities.
3. Refer note 37(B) for contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
4. Refer note 36(C) for additional disclosures with respect to amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
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Note 4: Intangible assets
Gross carrying amount
Particulars

Computer software
Total

Particulars

Computer software
Total

As at
1 April 2021

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Additions
Disposals/ capitalised
As at
31 March 2022
during the year
during the year

As at
1 April 2021

Amortisation for Disposals during
Impairment
during the year
the year
the year

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
31 March 2022

Net carrying
amount as at
31 March 2022

32.46

2.26

4.59

30.13

24.01

1.24

3.53

1.70

23.42

6.71

32.46

2.26

4.59

30.13

24.01

1.24

3.53

1.70

23.42

6.71

Gross carrying amount
As at
1 April 2020

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Additions
Disposals during the
year
during the year

As at
31 March 2021

As at
1 April 2020

Amortisation for Disposals during
Impairment
during the year
the year
the year

As at
31 March 2021

Net carrying
amount as at
31 March 2021

30.80

1.66

-

32.46

22.96

1.05

-

-

24.01

8.45

30.80

1.66

-

32.46

22.96

1.05

-

-

24.01

8.45

1. Refer note 14(a) for Intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities.
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Note 5 : Other non-current financial assets
(i) Derivatives
Foreign currency options
Principal only swaps
(ii) Others
Security deposit
Security deposit - Unsecured considered good
Other receivables
Total

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.22
568.82

669.11

13.84
-

14.83
49.38

584.88

733.32
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Note 6 : Deferred tax (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net)
Borrowings
Total deferred tax liabilities (A)
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Tax losses
Derivatives
Trade receivables
Employee benefits expenses
Others
Total deferred tax assets (B)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (B) - (A)

Movement of temporary differences

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net)
Borrowings
Tax losses
Employee benefits expenses
Derivatives
Trade receivables
Others
Total
Movement of temporary differences

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net)
Borrowings
Tax losses
Employee benefits expenses
Derivatives
Trade receivables
Others
Total

3,358.58
450.67
3,809.25

4,075.22
521.77
4,596.99

2,527.93
361.30
472.85
14.26
25.38
3,401.72

3,120.16
465.84
416.59
12.49
25.28
4,040.36

(407.53)

As at
1 April 2021

(4,075.22)
(521.77)
3,120.16
12.49
465.84
416.59
25.28
(556.63)
As at
1 April 2020

(4,158.04)
(585.39)
3,879.06
11.50
609.88
219.57
26.17
2.75

Recognised in profit
or loss

716.64
71.10
(592.23)
0.38
(55.82)
56.26
0.10
196.43
Recognised in profit
or loss

82.82
67.41
(758.90)
3.45
(140.79)
197.02
(0.89)
(549.88)
-

(556.63)

Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income
1.39
(48.72)
(47.33)
Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income
(2.46)
(3.25)
(5.71)
-

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Recognized in
As at
deemed
31 March 2022
contribution
(corporate
guarantee)
(3,358.58)
(450.67)
2,527.93
14.26
361.30
472.85
25.38
(407.53)
Recognized in
deemed
contribution
(corporate
guarantee)

(3.79)
(3.79)

As at
31 March 2021

(4,075.22)
(521.77)
3,120.16
12.49
465.84
416.59
25.28
(556.63)

73

Jhajjar Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 7 : Income tax assets (net)
Advance income tax [net of provision for tax Rs. 389.28
(31 March 2021 : Rs. 389.28)]*

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
488.63

463.69

Total
488.63
* Includes amount of Rs. Nil (31 March 2021 : Rs. 365.11) which represents income tax paid under protest.

463.69

Note 8 : Other non- current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses
Capital advances
Total
Note 9 : Inventories
At lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials [includes stock-in-transit Rs. 273.71
(31 March 2021: Rs. 221.23)]
Stores and spares [includes stock-in-transit Rs. 18.48
(31 March 2021: Rs. 24.53)]
Total
Note 10(a) : Trade receivables
Trade receivables - Considered good, Unsecured
Trade receivables - Credit impaired
Less: Provision for impairment - credit impaired
Total

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

70.09
18.45

82.21
97.44

88.54

179.65

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

2,330.54

3,346.90

900.25

955.86

3,230.79

4,302.76

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

7,397.26
1,788.68
(1,788.68)

7,285.30
1,565.14
(1,565.14)

7,397.26

7,285.30

Note:
Refer note 36(B) for additional disclosures with respect to amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Note 10(b) : Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Balance with banks on current accounts
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand

353.37
0.14

596.05
0.10
0.17

Total

353.51

596.32
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Note 10(c) : Other current financial assets
(i) Derivatives
Foreign currency options
Principal only swap
(ii) Others
Other receivables
Total

Note 11 : Other current assets

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

2.15
190.40

15.95
112.04

42.79

95.16

235.34

223.15

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Advance to suppliers
Balance with government authorities
Prepaid expenses

11,141.40
44.73

3,380.43
0.95
38.01

Total

11,186.13

3,419.39
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(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Note 12: Equity Share Capital

a. Authorised Equity Share Capital:
500,000,000 (31 March 2021 : 500,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
2,700,000,000 (31 March 2021 : 2,700,000,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10 each
Total

5,000.00
27,000.00
32,000.00

5,000.00
27,000.00
32,000.00

200.00
200.00

200.00
200.00

2,324,882,458 (31 March 2021: 2,324,882,458) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully
paid up

23,248.82

23,248.82

Total

23,448.82

23,448.82

20,000,000
20,000,000

20,000,000
20,000,000

2,324,882,458
2,324,882,458

2,324,882,458
2,324,882,458

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
20,000,000 (31 March 2021: 20,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Total

c. Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Equity shares :
Outstanding at the beginning of the year (nos.)
Issued during the year (nos.)
Outstanding at the end of the year (nos.)
d. Reconciliation of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Outstanding at the beginning of the year (nos.)
Issued during the year (nos.)
Outstanding at the end of the year (nos)
e. Terms / rights attached to each classes of shares

(i) Terms / rights attached to Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if
any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
(ii) Terms / rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
The Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) are convertible into fixed number of equity shares at any time before 20 years from the date of first
allotment of CCPS at the option of the Company with a right to Investor to call for conversion at any time after 15 years. The CCPS on conversion into equity
shares shall rank pari passu with existing equity shares in all respect.
f. Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or
associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate
Particulars

Equity Shares:
Shares held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company and its nominees

As at
31 March 2022
No. of Shares
Amount

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares:
CCPS held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited)

As at
31 March 2021
No. of Shares
Amount

20,000,000

200.00

20,000,000.0

200.00

2,324,882,458

23,248.82

2,324,882,458

23,248.82

g. No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
h. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below:
Particulars

Equity Shares:
Shares held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company, and its nominees
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares:
CCPS held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company

As at
31 March 2022
No. of Shares
% holding

As at
31 March 2021
No. of Shares
% holding

20,000,000

100%

20,000,000

100%

2,324,882,458

100%

2,324,882,458

100%
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i. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
Equity Shares:
Shares held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company, and its nominees
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares:
CCPS held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Equity Shares:
Shares held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company, and its nominees
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares:
CCPS held by Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited), the holding company

As at
31 March 2022
No. of Shares
% holding

As at
31 March 2021
No. of Shares
% holding

% change during
the year

20,000,000

100%

20,000,000

100%

-

2,324,882,458

100%

2,324,882,458

100%

-

As at
31 March 2021
No. of Shares
% holding

As at
31 March 2020
No. of Shares
% holding

% change during
the year

20,000,000

100%

20,000,000

100%

-

2,324,882,458

100%

2,324,882,458

100%

-
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Note 13 : Other Equity
Securities premium
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Deemed contribution (loan from parent company)
Deemed contribution (corporate guarantee)
Retained earnings
Cash flow hedging reserve
Cost of hedging reserve
Total

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
1,504.85
1,504.85
498.05
572.22
3,473.02
3,473.02
209.28
209.28
(4,624.34)
(4,006.45)
(25.91)
(173.99)
108.02
111.26
1,142.97

1,690.19

Nature and purpose of Reserves:
(i) Securities Premium
Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Debenture Redemption Reserve
As per amendment inserted Rule 2A with effect from 1st April 2021 which excludes "the public companies which have not listed their equity shares on a
recognised stock exchange but have listed their Non-Convertible Debt Securities issued on private placement basis" from the definition of Public Company. The
Company is therefore required to maintain Debenture Redemption Reserve at the rate of 10 % of its outstanding debentures. The company had excess DRR
maintained as on 31 March 2022 and therefore has transferred the amount in excess of 10% to retained earnings.
(iii) Cash flow Hedging reserve
This comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet
occurred.
(iv) Cost of hedging reserve
The Company designates the spot component of foreign currency forward contracts and the intrinsic value of foreign currency option contracts as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships. The Company defers changes in the forward element of foreign currency forward contracts and the time value element
of foreign currency option contracts in the costs of hedging reserve, as permitted by Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments.

(v) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability /(asset)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income).
(vi) Deemed contribution (loan from parent company)
The Company has obtained interest free loan from Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private Limited). This loan has been fair valued
and recorded as deemed contribution (loan from parent company).
(vii) Deemed contribution (corporate guarantee)
The Company has obtained corporate guarantee from Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private Limited) for Issue I and Issue IV
debentures to the extent of 50% and 100% of the debentures respectively. This guarantee has been fair valued and recorded at deemed contribution (deemed
corporate guarantee).
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Note 14 (a) : Non-current Borrowings
Secured
Debentures
Term Loans
From banks
Rupee Loan
Foreign Currency Loan

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

7,223.45

7,215.04

3,436.04
1,281.54

4,313.35
1,911.64

923.19
4,576.94

1,401.71
5,247.53

2,347.33

2,120.44

19,788.49

22,209.71

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings [Refer note 16(a)]
Less: Interest accrued on long-term borrowings [Refer note 16(c)]

3,073.26
312.52

2,832.42
309.72

Sub-total (B)

3,385.78

3,142.14

Total (A) - (B)

16,402.71

19,067.57

From financial institutions
Rupee Loan
Foreign Currency Loan
Unsecured
Loan from Related Party
Sub-total (A)

(A) Nature of security and terms of secured borrowings
(1) (i) Nature of security for non-current secured borrowings (debentures and term loans):(a) First ranking pari passu charge on movable assets, immovable property, plant and equipment, current assets (both present and future).
(b) First ranking pari passu charge on all the rights title, interest, benefit, claims and demand whatsoever of the issuer in the project documents, clearances related to
projects of the Company, any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any party for the project, all insurance contracts and insurance proceeds
relating to the project.
(c) First ranking pari passu charge on all intangible assets of the Company both present and future.
(ii) Nature of security specific for debentures:(a) First ranking pari passu charge on accounts established under the accounts agreement as defined under the debenture trust deed and any other bank accounts of
the Company.
(b) First ranking pari passu pledge of atleast 51% of equity shares and CCPS of the Company held by the holding company, Apraava Energy Private Limited.
(c) Corporate guarantee given by Apraava Energy Private Limited for Issue I and Issue IV debentures to the extent of 50% and 100% of the debentures respectively.

(iii) Nature of security specific for foreign currency loan from financial institution & rupee term loans:(a) First ranking pari passu charge in respect of the letter(s) of credit, escrow account, the trust and retention account, debt service reserve account and other
reserves and any other bank accounts of the Company.
(b) First ranking pari passu pledge of 51% of the equity shares and CCPS of the Company held by the Apraava Energy Private Limited at all times till the final
settlement date. Provided that the percentage of equity shares and CCPS on which the pledge shall persist shall be reduced to 26% of the issued and paid up share
capital of the Company upon repayment of 75% of the rupee facility, subject to there being no outstanding event of default.
(iv) Nature of security specific for foreign currency loan from banks:(a) First ranking pari passu charge in respect of the letter(s) of credit, Escrow Account, the Trust and Retention Account, Debt Service Reserve Account and other
reserves and any other bank accounts of the Company.
(b) First ranking pari passu pledge of 100% of the equity shares and CCPS of the Company held by the Apraava Energy Private Limited at all times till the final
settlement date.
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(2) Terms of borrowing
As at 31 March 2022
Debentures
Issue 1 Series 1
Issue 1 Series 2
Issue 2 Series 1
Issue 2 Series 2
Issue 4 Series 1

Amount*

Interest rate

Repayable at

Half yearly basis
30 April 2025
at 9.99% p.a.
30 April 2026
Annual basis at
28 April 2023
9.91% p.a.
30 April 2024
Half yearly basis
27 July 2023
at 8.10% p.a.
* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 30.23).
Term Loan
Rupee term loan from financial institution

2,380.00
2,380.00
400.00
800.00
1,000.00

Amount*
156.91

Average interest
rate
9.05% p.a.

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date
37 months
49 months
13 months
25 months
16 months

Repayment terms

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date
82% of the principal amount in
19 months
first
43
equal
quarterly
instalments and 18% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

Rupee term loan from bank

1,315.19

7.98%

66% of the principal amount in
first
18
equal
quarterly
instalments and 34% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

19 months

Rupee term loan from bank

6.32

8.75%

61% of the principal amount in
first
15
equal
quarterly
instalments and 39% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

19 months

Rupee term loan from Bank

332.85

7.94%

61% of the principal amount in
first
15
equal
quarterly
instalments and 39% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

19 months

Rupee term loan from Bank

838.35

7.94%

80% of the principal amount in
first
19
equal
quarterly
instalments and 20% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 31 December 2024

33 months

Rupee term loan from financial institution

766.28

8.79%

Repayable in 44 equal quarterly
instalments from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 31 December 2023

21 months
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Rupee term loan from Bank

952.05

8.09%

80% of the principal amount in
first
19
equal
quarterly
instalments and 20% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 15 April 25

37 months

* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 12.29).
Term Loan

Amount*

Interest rate

Repayment terms

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date

Foreign currency term loan from financial institution

4,585.80 Monthly basis at 6 Repayable in 44 quarterly
month libor + 220 instalments from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
bps p.a.
of 1 November 2023

19 months

Foreign currency term loan from bank

1,276.01 Quarterly basis at 3 Repayable in 44 quarterly
month libor + 250 instalments from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
bps p.a.
of 29 October 2023.

19 months

* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 15.78).
Unsecured borrowings

Amount*

Interest rate

Tranche 1%
2,000.00
Interest free
Tranche 2%
2,000.00
% For equity component of loan from related party, refer to note 13.
* Amount represents amount of the borrowings received.
# It is subject to financial arrangement/agreement with banks/financial institutions/debenture holders.

As at 31 March 2021
Debentures
Issue 1 Series 1
Issue 1 Series 2
Issue 2 Series 1
Issue 2 Series 2
Issue 4 Series 1

Amount*

Interest rate

Repayable at #

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date

31 December 2026
31 December 2027

57 months
69 months

Repayable at

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date

30 April 2025
Half yearly basis
at 9.99% p.a.
30 April 2026
28 April 2023
Annual basis at
9.91% p.a.
30 April 2024
Half yearly basis
27 July 2023
at 8.10% p.a.
* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 38.64).
Term Loan
Rupee term loan from financial institution

Rupee term loan from bank

2,380.00
2,380.00
400.00
800.00
1,000.00

Amount*

Average interest
rate

197.56

9.05% p.a.

1,655.93

8.53% p.a.

49 months
61 months
25 months
37 months
28 months

Repayment terms

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date
82% of the principal amount in
31 months
first
43
equal
quarterly
instalments and 18% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023
66% of the principal amount in
first
18
equal
quarterly
instalments and 34% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

31 months
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Rupee term loan from bank

7.95

9.71% p.a.

61% of the principal amount in
first
15
equal
quarterly
instalments and 39% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

31 months

Rupee term loan from Bank

419.08

8.59% p.a.

61% of the principal amount in
first
15
equal
quarterly
instalments and 39% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

31 months

Rupee term loan from Bank

1,065.75

8.57% p.a.

80% of the principal amount in
first
19
equal
quarterly
instalments and 20% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 31 December 2024

45 months

Rupee term loan from financial institution

1,204.16

9.29% p.a.

Repayable in 44 equal quarterly
instalments from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 31 December 2023

33 months

Rupee term loan from Bank

1,179.45

8.70% p.a.

80% of the principal amount in
first
19
equal
quarterly
instalments and 20% of the
principal amount in the last
installment from the date of first
disbursement with maturity date
of 15 April 25

49 months

* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 19.64).
Term Loan

Amount*

Interest rate

Repayment terms

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date

Foreign currency term loan from financial institution

5,264.41 Monthly basis at 6 Repayable in 44 quarterly
month libor + 220 instalments from the date of first
bps p.a.
disbursement with maturity date
of 1 November 2023

31 months

Foreign currency term loan from bank

1,916.29 Quarterly basis at 3 Repayable in 44 quarterly
month libor + 250 instalments from the date of first
bps p.a.
disbursement with maturity date
of 29 October 2023.

31 months

* Amount represents current and non-current portion of the borrowings (gross of unamortised transaction cost of Rs. 32.77).
Unsecured borrowings

Amount*

Interest rate

Tranche 1%
2,000.00
Interest free
Tranche 2%
2,000.00
% For equity component of loan from related party, refer note 13.
* Amount represents amount of the borrowings received.
# It is subject to financial arrangement/agreement with banks/financial institutions/debenture holders.

Repayable at #

Period of maturity
from balance sheet date

31 December 2026
31 December 2027

69 months
81 months
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(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2022

Note 14 (b) : Other non-current financial liabilities
(i) Derivatives
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Interest rate swaps

46.24

13.85
200.79

(ii) Others
Premium payable on cancelled options
Total

46.24

1.30
215.94

As at
31 March 2022

Note 15 : Provisions (Non-Current)

As at
31 March 2021

Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 29)

10.70
36.01

4.85
35.09

Total

46.71

39.94

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2022

Note 16 (a) : Current Borrowings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings [Refer note 14(a)]

3,073.26

2,832.42

Secured
From banks
Working capital loan repayable on demand

1,452.54

699.81

From financial institutions
Commercial paper

-

Total

4,525.80

2,742.58
6,274.81

Nature of Security and terms of borrowings
Nature of Security
Terms of Repayment
Working Capital Loan and cash credit from banks are secured by a first mortgage and charge in favour Working capital loan is repayable within a period ranging
of the lenders of all the immovable properties both present and future of the Company on pari pasu from 8 to 14 days (31 March 2021: 7 to 150 days). Interest
basis and a first charge by way of hypothecation on movable properties, machinery, machinery spares, rate ranges from 4.35% p.a. to 6.95% p.a. (31 March 2021:
tools and accessories present and future subject to prior charge created in favour of the bankers. They 4.45% p.a. to 8.00% p.a.)
are also secured by hypothecation of inventories, book debts and receivables. Pledge of 51%
shareholding of sponsors in the Company.
Commercial papers are unsecured in nature.

Repayable within a period ranges Nil (31 March 2021 : from
41 to 271 days) with coupon rate ranging Nil (31 March
2021: from 3.75% p.a. to 6.60% p.a)

Note 16(b) : Trade payables

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 38)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

33.76
10,040.73

12.34
3,182.40

Total

10,074.49

3,194.74

Note:
Refer note 36(A) for additional disclosures with respect to amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

83

Jhajjar Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 16(c) : Other current financial liabilities
(i) Derivatives
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Interest rate swap

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021
19.68
19.41

44.03
62.75

(ii) Others
Interest accrued on long-term borrowings [Refer note 14(a)]
Book overdraft
Bonus payable
Premium payable on cancelled options
Payable to capital creditors
Others

312.52
121.43
1.27
8.62
117.96

309.72
70.07
109.24
12.15
8.54
122.77

Total

600.89

739.27

Note 17 : Provisions (Current)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 29)
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 29)

6.77
3.19

6.02
3.65

Total

9.96

9.67

Note 18 : Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Statutory dues (including Tax deducted at source, Provident fund, Goods and services tax etc.)
Advance from customers
Earnest money deposit

32.41
23.56
25.85

29.97
16.28
9.52

Total

81.82

55.77

Contract Balances
Contract liability comprises of consideration received from customers against which services are yet to be provided or material is yet to be supplied, reported as
advance from customers disclosed as under:
Particulars
Advance from customers - current

As at
31 March 2022

23.56

As at
31 March 2021
16.28

Revenue recognised from amount included in contract liabilities (advance from customers) at the beginning of the year amounts to Rs. 16.28 (31 March 2021 : Rs.
20.79).

Note 19 : Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for tax [net of advance income tax Rs. 338.91 (31 March 2021: Rs. 338.91)]
Total

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021
129.81
129.81

129.81
129.81
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Note 20 : Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue from sale of electricity
Operating lease income
[Capacity charges which is in nature of operating lease income under Ind AS 116]
Other operating revenue:
Sale of fly ash

27,814.26
5,736.35

17,470.50
6,030.81

872.01

482.92

Total

34,422.62

23,984.23

For the year ended
31 March 2022
24,898.72
3,787.55
28,686.27

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021
15,314.93
2,638.49
17,953.42

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue disaggregation by type of customers is as follows:Major
Government
Non-government
Total

Note 21 : Other income
(a) Interest Income
(i) on financial assets held at amortised cost
Interest on fixed deposits
Interest income on others
(ii) Others
Interest on refund from income tax
(b) Other non-operating income
Derivatives at FVTPL
Net gain on foreign currency transactions
Miscellaneous income
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required
Total

Note 22 : Cost of materials consumed

5.46
5.47

20.27
8.39

7.45

21.44

78.47
39.93
0.36

161.70
14.73
5.28

137.14

231.81

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Consumption of coal
Consumption of high speed diesel
Consumption of stores and spares
Water charges

25,166.69
139.78
615.45
162.63

14,727.22
80.50
536.20
97.22

Total

26,084.55

15,441.14

Note 23 : Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

583.54
24.82
6.53

604.68
24.86
5.57

Total

614.89

635.11
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Note 24 : Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Other borrowing cost

1,747.05
7.20

2,050.96
8.12

Total

1,754.25

2,059.08

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

2,406.31
1.24

2,466.42
1.05

Total

2,407.55

2,467.47

Note 26 : Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant & machinery
- Building
- Others
Unscheduled intercharges
Rent expense
Insurance
Traveling and conveyance
Legal and professional
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 39)
Rates and taxes
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibilities (CSR) activities (refer note 40)
Inventory write off
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net loss on foreign currency transactions
Derivatives at FVTPL
Premium/other cost on derivatives
Information technology operating costs
Office expenses
Security expenses
Contract staff
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021

230.22
10.15
181.65
137.31
8.68
173.35
13.91
56.79
6.33
0.21
40.44
37.31
5.74
172.71
225.50
53.15
41.78
35.82
246.39
102.45

308.42
15.08
202.06
89.31
3.17
145.62
18.00
44.53
5.40
1.01
43.09
47.02
0.25
250.54
330.21
60.98
35.94
37.23
191.79
103.16

1,779.89

1,932.81
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Note 27 : Income tax expense
(a) The major components of income tax expenses for the year are as under:
(i) Recognised in the statement of profit & loss
Current tax
- in respect of current year
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Reversal of deferred tax asset on account of disallowance of forward premium
expense under Vivad se Vishwas scheme
Total
(ii) Recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax
- on remeasurements of defined benefit plan
- on net movement on cash flow hedges and cost of hedging
Total

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax at corporate tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Reversal of deferred tax asset on account of disallowance of forward premium expense under
Vivad se Vishwas scheme
Others
Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021

-

-

(196.43)

430.84

-

119.04

(196.43)

549.88

(1.39)
48.72

2.46
3.25

47.33

5.71

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
(884.37)
(222.58)

1,680.43
422.93

10.18
-

10.84
119.04

15.58
(196.43)

(2.93)
549.88
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Note 28 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares.
Ordinary equity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a Compulsory convertible preference shares are included in the calculation of basic
earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

i. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company [Basic and Diluted]

ii. Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating EPS
Compulsory convertible preference shares
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the
denominator in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic and Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
Nominal Value per share
Equity shares
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2022
March 2021
(687.94)

1,130.55

For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2022
March 2021
20,000,000

20,000,000

2,324,882,458

2,324,882,458

2,344,882,458

2,344,882,458

For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2022
March 2021
(0.29)
0.48
(0.29)
0.48
For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2022
March 2021
10.00
10.00

10.00
10.00
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Note 29: Defined Benefit Obligation
The Company contributes to the following post employment benefit plan:
(i) Defined Contribution
The Company pays provident fund contributions to the appropriate government authorities at rate specified as per regulations. An amount of Rs. 18.67
(31 March 2021 : Rs. 17.01) has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund deposited with the relevant
authorities and has been shown under Employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
A. Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity to employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period
of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. Every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total basic salary last drawn for each completed year
of service. The Company makes annual contributions to the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the LIC of India, a funded
defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over
a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March 2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
Particulars
Note
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation (A)
Fair value of plan assets (B)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (A) - (B)
Non-current
Current

59.15
41.67
17.48
10.70
6.77

15
17

46.58
35.71
10.87
4.85
6.02

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (assets)/ liability and its components:
(All amount in Rs. Million)
(a) Gratuity (Funded)

Present value
of obligation

Fair Value Of Plan
Assets

Net Defined Benefit
Obligation

As at 1 April 2020
Transfer in/ (out) obligation
Service cost
Interest cost/ (income)
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss

42.52
0.18
6.44
2.84
9.46

28.45
2.08
2.08

14.07
0.18
6.44
0.76
7.38

Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss /(gain) arising from:
- Due to change in financial assumptions
- Due to change in demographic assumptions
- Due to change in experience adjustment
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Total amount recognised in Other comprehensive income

(1.54)
(0.30)
(1.58)
(3.42)

(0.45)
(0.45)

(1.54)
(0.30)
(1.58)
0.45
(2.97)

Benefits paid
Contributions
As at 31 March 2021

(1.98)
46.58

(1.98)
7.61
35.71

(7.61)
10.87

Transfer in/(out) obligation
Service cost
Interest cost/ (income)
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

(0.53)
6.02
3.01
8.50

2.50
2.50

(0.53)
6.02
0.51
6.00
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Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss /(gain) arising from:
- Due to change in financial assumptions
- Due to change in demographic assumptions
- Due to change in experience adjustment
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Benefits paid
Contributions
As at 31 March 2022

1.39
0.38
3.64
5.41

(0.07)
(0.07)

1.39
0.38
3.64
0.07
5.48

(1.36)
59.14

(1.36)
4.89
41.67

(4.89)
17.47

C. Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise the following:

Investment made by insurance company
Bank balance maintain by insurance company

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

99%
1%

98%
2%

31 March 2022
6.85%
6.85%
6.00%
2.5% at all ages
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
table

31 March 2021
6.55%
6.55%
5.5%
2% at all ages
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
table

D. Defined benefit obligations
i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the
Discount rate
Return on plan assets
Salary escalation rate
Withdrawal rates
In service mortality

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on standard public statistics and mortality tables.
ii. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the related actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
Particulars

Change in Assumptions
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate
Future salary growth

0.50%
0.50%

0.50%
0.50%

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in assumptions
Decrease in assumptions
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
(3.29)
3.61

(2.83)
3.12

3.60
(3.33)

3.11
(2.87)

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in above assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been applied, as has been applied
when calculating the provision for defined benefit plan recognised in the Balance Sheet.
The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous years.
E. Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
Credit risk : As the scheme is insured and fully funded on projected unit credit basis, there is a credit risk to the extent the insurer(s) is/are unable to
discharge their obligations including failure to discharge in timely manner.

90

Jhajjar Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Discount rate risk: The Company is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit thereby increasing the value of the liability.
Future salary increase risk: The scheme cost is very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalation rates for all final salary defined benefit schemes. If
actual future salary escalations are higher than that assumed in the valuation actual scheme cost and hence the value of the liability will be the higher than
that estimated.
Longevity Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.
F. Asset-Liability matching study
The Gratuity benefits plan of the Company are funded. However, there are no minimum funding requirements for a Gratuity benefits plan in India. The
trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these
funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance
regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it may not be possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability
matching strategy to manage risk actively in a conventional fund.
G. Other disclosures
The Company expects to make a contribution of Rs. 6.77 (31 March 2021 - Rs. 6.02) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12.53 years (31 March 2021- 13.66 years). The expected maturity analysis of gratuity
is as follows:
Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity)

Less than a year

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

1.84
1.19

Between 1 and 2 Between 2 and
years
5 years
4.12
7.41
1.28
6.82

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Over 5 years

Total

28.23
20.85

41.60
30.14

(iii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations The leave obligation covers the Company's liability for sick and earned leave. The amount of the provision of Rs. 39.20 (31 March 2021: Rs. 38.74) is
presented as current (leave obligations expected to be settled within the next 12 months) and non current. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this
respect, the following table sets out the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

(a) Leave Liability (Unfunded)

Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
Net interest cost
Actuarial loss /(gain) arising from:
-Due to change in demographic assumptions
-Due to change in financial assumptions
-Due to change in experience adjustment
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
24.53

21.02

4.37
1.54

9.09
(1.00)
1.29

0.03
0.52
(4.94)
1.52

0.09
(0.68)
(3.58)
5.22
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Transfer in / (out) obligation
Benefits paid

(0.02)
(1.13)

0.03
(1.74)

Personal leave liability
Current
Non-Current

24.90
1.40
23.50

24.53
1.95
22.58

Sick leave liability
Current
Non-Current

14.30
1.79
12.51

14.20
1.69
12.51

Total leave liability
Current
Non-Current

39.20
3.19
36.01

38.74
3.65
35.09
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Note 30: Operating leases
A. Leases as lessee
The rental expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for short term and low value leases is Rs. 0.55 during year ended 31
March 2022 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 0.51).
B. Leases as Lessor
The 25-year power purchase arrangements between Jhajjar Power Limited and its offtaker (Haryana Power Purchase Centre) are
accounted for as operating leases. Under the agreements, the offtakers are obliged to purchase the output of Jhajjar Power Limited at
predetermined prices. Although the arrangement is not in the legal form of a lease, the Company has concluded that the arrangement
contains a lease, because fulfilment of the arrangement is economically dependent on the use of assets specified in the arrangement, and
as per the arrangement one or more parties other than the offtaker will not take more than an insignificant amount of the output or other
utility that will be produced or generated by the specified assets during the term of the arrangement, and the price that the offtaker will
pay for the output is neither contractually fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current market price per unit of output as of the time of
delivery of the output.
It was determined that substantially all the risks and rewards of the specified assets are with the Company and therefore the leases are
classified as operating leases.
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows :-

-With in one year
-Between one and two years
-Between two and three years
-Between three and four years
-Between four and five years
-Over 5 years

(Amount in INR Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
4,360.40
6,032.39
4,335.48
4,360.40
4,329.27
4,335.48
4,136.79
4,329.27
4,303.58
4,136.79
38,781.00
43,084.58
60,246.52
66,278.91
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Note 31: Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management
(i) Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
Carrying value of Financial Instruments by category

Particulars
Financial assets
Derivatives (Non-current)
Other Non-current financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivatives (Current)
Other current financial asset
Total
Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings
Derivatives (Non-Current)
Other Non-Current financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Derivatives (Current)
Other Current financial liabilities
Total

As at 31 March 2022
Fair value hedging instrument

FVTPL

568.82
190.40
759.22
-

Amortised Cost

2.22
2.15
4.37

13.84
7,397.26
353.51
42.79
7,807.40

46.24
39.09
85.33

16,402.71
4,525.80
10,074.49
561.80
31,564.80

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at 31 March 2021
Fair value Amortised Cost
hedging instrument

FVTPL

669.11
112.04
781.15
-

15.95
15.95

64.21
7,285.30
596.32
95.16
8,040.99

214.64
106.78
321.42

19,067.57
1.30
6,274.81
3,194.74
632.49
29,170.91

B. Fair Value hierarchy
Financial Assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31-March-2022
Particulars
Note
Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Principal only swap
5, 10(c)
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Derivatives designated as hedges
Foreign currency options
Total Financial Assets
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTOCI
Derivatives designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Total Financial Liabilities

Level 1

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Level 3
Total

Level 2
-

759.22

-

759.22

5, 10(c)

-

4.37
763.59

-

4.37
763.59

14(b), 16(c)
14(b), 16(c)

-

65.65
19.68
85.33

-

65.65
19.68
85.33
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Financial Assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31-March-2021
Particulars
Note
Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Principal only swap
5, 10(c)
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Derivatives designated as hedges
Foreign currency options
Total Financial Assets
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTOCI
Derivatives designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Total Financial Liabilities

Level 1

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Level 3
Total

Level 2
-

781.15

-

781.15

5, 10(c)

-

15.95
797.11

-

15.95
797.11

14(b), 16(c)
14(b), 16(c)

-

263.54
57.88
321.42

-

263.54
57.88
321.42

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
Note
Level 1

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Level 3
Total

Level 2

Other financial assets *
Trade receivables *
Cash and cash equivalents *
Total Financial Assets

5, 10(c)
10(a)
10(b)

-

-

-

-

Long-term borrowings #
Other financial liabilities *
Short term borrowings *
Trade payables *
Total Financial Liabilities

14(a)
14(b), 16(c)
16(a)
16(b)

-

-

-

-

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Note
Level 1

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Level 3
Total

Level 2

Other financial assets *
Trade receivables *
Cash and cash equivalents *
Total Financial Assets

5, 10(c)
10(a)
10(b)

-

-

-

-

Long-term borrowings #
Other financial liabilities *
Short term borrowings *
Trade payables *
Total Financial Liabilities

14(a)
14(b), 16(c)
16(a)
16(b)

-

-

-

-

* The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financial liabilities, other financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, and short term borrowings approximates
the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Other financial assets primarily consists recoverable amount on account of cancelled options which are recorded at amortized cost
using an appropriate discount rate. The valuation technique used is discounted cash flow with no significant unobservable inputs.
# Fair value of the Company’s borrowings approximates to their carrying amounts as they are based on the net present value of the anticipated future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The Company has no such
financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which uses inputs other
than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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C. Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet, as well
as the significant unobservable inputs used. Related valuation processes are described in Note 2(a)(vi).
Type

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs and
inter-relationship between significant
unobservable inputs and fair value
measurement

Forward exchange contracts

Forward pricing: The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at
the reporting date interpolated for the time to maturity of individual trades and present
value calculations based on high credit quality yield curves in the respective
currencies.

Not applicable

Interest rate swaps/ Principal only swaps

Swap models: The fair value is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. Estimates of future floating-rate cash flows are based on quoted swap
rates, futures prices and interbank borrowing rates. Estimated cash flows are
discounted using a yield curve constructed from similar sources and which reflects the
relevant benchmark interbank rate used by market participants for this purpose when
pricing interest rate swaps. In case of principal only swaps cash flows belonging to one
currency is converted into the other currency using currency forward rates. The fair
value estimate is subject to a credit risk adjustment that reflects the credit risk of the
Company and of the counterparty; this is calculated based on credit spreads derived
from current credit default swap or bond prices.

Not applicable

Currency options

Option model: The value of a European currency option is calculated by assuming that
the currency pair’s spot rate follows a log-normal process and the model used is known
as the Garman Kohlhagen Model. The model takes into consideration the presence of
two interest rates (one for each currency).
Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the present value of expected
payment, discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate.

Not applicable

Other financial assets and liabilities

Not applicable

D. Transfers between Levels 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There has been no transfer between level 1 and level 2 for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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Note 32: Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk
i. Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts are entered to
hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures and interest rate swaps to hedge variable interest rate exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as
trading or speculative instruments.
The Company's risk management is carried out by a treasury department under the supervision of Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The treasury department identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Company's operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as interest rate risk, liquidity risk etc.
The audit committee / board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular
and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the board.
(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers and other financial assets.
The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
Trade receivables and loans
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company has significant concentration of credit risk with
respect to the sale of electricity as the Company sells a majority of its electricity output to state electricity boards in India through Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) for 25 years.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by type of counterparty is as follows.

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Carrying amount
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Credit risk for trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Electricity procurer
Others
Other financial assets
Security deposit - Unsecured considered good
Other receivables

7,343.76
53.50

7,242.33
42.97

13.84
42.79
7,453.89

14.83
144.54
7,444.67

At 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the Company's most significant customer (a state electricity board) is Rs. 7,103.03 (31 March 2021: Rs. 7,158.21).
The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available internal credit risk factors such as the Company’s historical experience for customers. Based on the business
environment in which the Company operates, management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) if the payments are more than 90 days past due.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by ageing is as follows:

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Carrying amount
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
3,921.25
4,110.09
65.03
55.68
2.80
25.21
3,330.09
3,172.41
7,397.26
7,285.30

Receivables Ageing
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due 1–30 days
Past due 31–90 days
Past due 91–120 days
More than 120 days

There are no receivables, other than those under dispute with state electricity board, which are in default (90 days past due) as at year end and the management believes that these
are collectible in full based on historical payment behaviour. With respect to receivables under dispute with state electricity boards, the management based on ongoing discussion
and status of dispute has made appropriate loss allowance.
The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss (excluding loss allowance made in respect of receivables under dispute) on customer balances for the year ended 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 is insignificant and hence the same has not been recognised. The reversal for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the current year is Rs. Nil
(31 March 2021 : Rs. Nil).
Movement in the Impairment allowance for doubtful receivables
Impairment allowance for doubtful receivables on 31 March 2020
Changes in loss allowance
Impairment allowance for doubtful receivables on 31 March 2021
Changes in loss allowance
Impairment allowance for doubtful receivables on 31 March 2022

1,502.32
62.82
1,565.14
223.54
1,788.68

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

Derivatives and other financial assets
Credit risk on derivatives and other financial assets is limited as the Company generally obtains derivative contracts from banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.
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(B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to
reduce refinancing risk in any year and to fund working capital and debt servicing obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding through availability under committed credit lines. Management also monitors rolling forecasts of the
Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is
generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy
involves close monitoring of liquidity position by monitoring cash collection and level of liquid assets necessary to meet cash outflow obligation, monitoring
balance sheet liquidity ratios against external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
(i) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period:

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Particulars
Floating rate
- Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities)

8,297.18

9,050.00

The working capital loan facilities and bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time, if required. In addition to the above, the parent company has given a
corporate guarantee for Issue I debentures to the extent of 50% of the debentures. The Company has committment from the parent company to fund the Company
as required.
(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash flow amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

As at 31 March 2022:
Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Rupee term loans from banks and financial
institutions
Foreign currency term loans from banks and
financial institutions
Debentures
Loan from related party
Working capital loan from banks
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total non-derivative financial liabilities

Not later than
1 year

Between 1 and 2 years Between 2 and 5
years

1,361.94

2,125.19

1,733.16

4,128.64

1,450.00
10,074.49
561.80
15,181.39

1,400.00
7,653.83

Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts
- Outflow
- Inflow

374.04
354.00

Interest rate swap

(56.87)

(0.51)

671.17
15,852.56

(0.51)
7,653.32

Total derivative financial liabilities
Total non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities

-

880.80
5,560.00
2,000.00
8,440.80

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Later than 5
Total
years

-

4,367.93

-

5,861.80

2,000.00
2,000.00

6,960.00
4,000.00
1,450.00
10,074.49
561.80
33,276.02

-

-

374.04
354.00

-

-

(57.38)

8,440.80

2,000.00

670.66
33,946.68
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As at 31 March 2021:
Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Rupee term loans from banks and financial
institutions
Foreign currency term loans from banks and
financial institutions
Debentures
Loan from related party
Working capital loan from banks
Commercial papers
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total non-derivative financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts
- Outflow
- Inflow
Interest rate swaps
Total derivative financial liabilities
Total non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities

Not later than
1 year

Between 1 and 2 years Between 2 and 5
years

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Later than 5
Total
years

1,361.94

1,361.94

3,005.99

-

5,729.87

1,502.91

1,678.76

3,999.04

-

7,180.71

700.00
2,750.00
3,194.74
632.49
10,142.08

1.30
3,042.00

4,580.00
11,585.03

(737.28)
692.16

(374.04)
358.92

(81.06)

(135.61)

(53.54)

(126.18)
10,015.90

(150.73)
2,891.27

(53.54)
11,531.49

-

2,380.00
4,000.00
6,380.00

6,960.00
4,000.00
700.00
2,750.00
3,194.74
633.79
31,149.11

-

(1,111.32)
1,051.08

-

(270.21)

6,380.00

(330.45)
30,818.66
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(C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates – will affect the Company’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Company uses derivatives to manage market risks. All such transactions are
carried out within the guidelines set by the Company. The Company seeks to apply hedge accounting to manage volatility in profit or loss.
a. Foreign Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange contracts, principal only swaps and options to hedge its currency risk.
The Company uses a combination of option contracts, principal only swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure in
foreign currency risk. The Company designates the spot element of forward contracts and the intrinsic value of option contracts as the
hedging instrument.
Exposure to Foreign Currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) is as follows.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure as at 31 March 2022
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings
Trade payables
Exposure to foreign currency risk
Derivative contracts
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)

(All amount in Rs. Million)
USD
5,861.80
0.58
5,862.38
(5,861.80)
0.58
USD

As at 31 March 2021
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings
Trade payables
Exposure to foreign currency risk
Derivative contracts
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)

7,180.71
0.23
7,180.94
(7,180.71)
0.23

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the US dollar or EURO against INR at 31 March would have affected the measurement
of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars
Effect in INR
For the year ended 31 March 2022
5% movement
USD
Total
For the year ended 31 March 2021
5% movement
USD
Total

Profit or loss
Strengthening
Weakening

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Equity (net of tax)
Strengthening
Weakening

(0.02)
(0.02)

0.02
0.02

(0.02)
(0.02)

0.02
0.02

(0.01)
(0.01)

0.01
0.01

(0.01)
(0.01)

0.01
0.01
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b. Interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises from debt borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk, whilst borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The risks are managed by
monitoring an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and by the use of interest rate swaps.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as
follows.
(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
(a) Interest rate risk exposure
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
Fixed-rate borrowings
Debentures
Borrowings hedged through Interest rate swaps

Variable-rate borrowings
Long term borrowings
Short term borrowings
Borrowings hedged through Interest rate swaps
Total borrowings

6,929.77
6,929.77
5,846.04
12,775.81

6,921.36
6,921.36
7,147.94
14,069.30

10,201.69
1,450.00
11,651.69
(5,846.04)
5,805.65

12,858.19
3,450.01
16,308.20
(7,147.94)
9,160.26

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Company does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments (other than variable rate instruments hedged using floating to fixed interest
rate swaps)
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ (decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates,
remain constant.
Cash flow sensivity analysis for variable rate instruments for the year ended 31-March-2022
Particulars
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments

Profit or loss
50 bps increase
50 bps decrease

Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase
50 bps decrease

38.91

(38.91)

38.91

(38.91)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

38.91

(38.91)

38.91

(38.91)

For the year ended 31 March 2021
Variable-rate instruments

35.99

(35.99)

35.99

(35.99)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

35.99

(35.99)

35.99

(35.99)
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c. Hedge accounting
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency and interest rate risk on account of variable rate borrowings. The Company's risk management policy is to hedge its foreign
currency exposure and interest rate exposure in accordance with the exposure limits advised from time to time. The Company uses forward exchange contracts and options to hedge its currency risk and interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate
risk. Such contracts are generally designated as cash flow hedges.
The Company designates the spot element of forward contracts, the intrinsic value of option contracts and interest rate swaps as the hedging instrument and applies a hedge ratio of 1:1. The Company's policy is for the critical terms of the hedging
instrument to match with the hedged item.
The Company determines the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and timing of their respective cash flows. The Company assesses whether the derivative
designated in each hedging relationship is expected to be and has been effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item using the hypothetical derivative method.
In these hedge relationships, changes in timing of the hedged transactions and differences in re-pricing dates between the swaps and the borrowings are the main source of hedge ineffectiveness.
a. Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position as at 31 March 2022
75.82340405
Particulars
Nominal Value

Carrying amount of hedging
instrument
Assets

Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign Exchange Risk
Forward exchange contracts
Foreign currency options
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate swaps

351.19
391.04

5,861.81

Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position as at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Nominal Value

Maturity date

Hedge ratio

Liabilities

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Change in the value of
Changes in fair value hedged item used as
Average strike
of the hedging
the basis for
price/ rate
instrument
recognising hedge
effectiveness

4.37

19.68
-

Apr-22 - Jul-22
Apr-22 - Nov-23

1:1
1:1

80.75
77.00

11.03
-

(11.03)
-

-

65.65

Apr-22 - Nov-23

1:1

3.82%

104.79

(104.79)

Carrying amount of hedging
instrument
Assets

Maturity date

Hedge ratio

Liabilities

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Change in the value of
Changes in fair value hedged item used as
Average strike
of the hedging
the basis for
price/ rate
instrument
recognising hedge
effectiveness

Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign Exchange Risk
Forward exchange contracts

1,020.47

-

57.88

Apr-21 - Jul-22

1:1

79.98

(26.95)

26.95

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate swaps

7,180.39

-

263.54

Apr-21 - Nov-23

1:1

3.82%

(33.99)

33.99
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b. Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance as at 31 March 2022
Particulars

Change in the value of the hedging
instrument recognised in OCI

Cash Flow Hedge
(i) Foreign Exchange Risk
(ii) Interest Rate Risk

11.03
104.79

Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance as at 31 March 2021
Particulars

-

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Amount reclassified from cash
flow hedging reserve to profit or
loss
(11.03)
93.09

Other Income

Line item affected in Statement of Profit and
Loss because of the reclassification
Other Expense

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Change in the value of the hedging
instrument recognised in OCI
Cash Flow Hedge
(i) Foreign Exchange Risk
(ii) Interest Rate Risk

Hedge
Line item in the
ineffectiveness
Statement of Profit and
recognised in profit Loss that includes the
or loss
hedge ineffectiveness

(26.95)
(33.99)

Line item in the
Hedge
Statement
of Profit and
ineffectiveness
recognised in profit Loss that includes the
hedge ineffectiveness
or loss
-

Amount reclassified from cash
flow hedging reserve to profit or
loss

Other Income

26.96
29.50

Line item affected in Statement of Profit and
Loss because of the reclassification

Other income

c. The following table provides a reconciliation by risk category of components of equity and analysis of OCI items, net of tax, resulting from cash flow hedge accounting:
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve
Foreign Currency Risk
Interest Rate Risk
Total
Forwards
Options
Interest rate swaps
Balance as at 1 April 2020
Add : Changes in discounted spot element of foreign
exchange forward contracts
Add : Changes in intrinsic value of foreign currency options
Add : Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps
Less : Amounts reclassified to profit or loss
Less : Deferred tax relating to the above
As at 31 March 2021
Add : Changes in discounted spot element of foreign
exchange forward contracts
Add : Changes in intrinsic value of foreign currency options
Add : Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps
Less : Amounts reclassified to profit or loss
Less : Deferred tax relating to the above
As at 31 March 2022

(26.95)

-

(170.64)
-

(170.64)
(26.95)

26.95
11.03

-

(33.99)
29.50
1.14
(173.99)
-

(33.99)
56.45
1.14
(173.99)
11.03

(11.03)
-

-

104.79
93.09
(49.80)
(25.91)
0.00

104.79
82.06
(49.80)
(25.91)
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Movements in cost of Hedging reserve

Foreign Currency Risk
Forwards

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Cost of hedging - changes in fair value
Cost of hedging - change in fair value reclassified to profit or
loss
Deferred tax relating to the above
As at 31 March 2021
Cost of hedging - changes in fair value
Cost of hedging - change in fair value reclassified to profit or
loss
Deferred tax relating to the above
As at 31 March 2022

Interest Rate Risk

Options

Interest rate swaps

Total

196.15
(51.79)
112.67

(96.25)
(61.37)
15.81

-

99.90
(113.16)
128.48

(15.32)
241.71
(29.85)
37.11

11.36
(130.45)
(11.58)
-

-

(3.96)
111.26
(41.43)
37.11

(1.83)
247.14

2.91
(139.12)
-

-

1.08
108.02
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Note 33: Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, maintain a strong credit
rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the business and to enhance shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business strategies to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, issue new shares or raise and repay debts. The Company's capital management objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the year.
The Company monitors capital using 'total debt to total capital' and 'net debt to total capital' ratios. These ratios are as follows:

Total Debt
Net Debt*
Total equity
Total capital (based on total debt)
Total capital (based on net debt)
Net debt to equity ratio
Total debt to total capital (based on total debt) ratio (%)
Net debt to total capital (based on net debt) ratio (%)

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
As at
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
20,928.51
25,652.10
20,575.00
25,055.78
45,520.30
45,166.79
0.46
45.98%
45.55%

50,791.18
50,194.86
0.50
50.51%
49.92%

* Total debt less cash and cash equivalents
Note 34: Segment Reporting
The Company primarily operates under single reportable segment i.e. leasing of asset for generation of electricity. This segment includes all activities
related to generation of electricity.
The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's
performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit.
Therefore, based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments", the Company’s business activity fall with in a single operating
segment, namely generation and distribution of electricity. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements on reportable segments of Ind AS 108 are not
applicable.
Entity -wide disclosures
Entity -wide disclosures details as per Ind AS 108 :(i) Revenue from operations reported are from single stream of operations.
(ii) The Company is operating in a single geographical area and there are no overseas customers of the Company.
(iii) There are no non- current assets located outside India.
(iv) Major individual customer with whom revenue exceeds more than 10% of the Company’s revenue :Name of customer
Haryana Power Purchase Centre

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
30,635.07
21,345.74
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Notes 35: Related party disclosures
(a) List of related parties and relationships
(i) The Company is controlled by the following entities:Nature of relationship

Entity name

Ultimate holding company
Holding company

CLP Holdings Limited, Hong Kong
Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private
Limited)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the current/previous year.
(a) Entity with direct or indirect control over the Company:Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private Limited)
(b) Key managerial personnel of the Company and their close family members
Key Managerial Personnel

- Mr. Rajiv Mishra (Managing Director)
- Mr. Samir Ashta (Director and Chief Financial Officer)
- Ms. Hina Shah (Non-Executive Independent Director)
- Ms. Urvashi Shah (Non-Executive Independent Director)
- Mr. Jayant Patil (Company Secretary)

(c) Other related parties - Entities which are subsidiaries or where control/significant influence exist of parties as given in (i), (ii) a or (ii) b
above.
Apraava Renewable Energy Private Limited [formerly known as CLP Wind
Farms (India) Private Limited]
Fellow Subsidiaries
CLP Business Management and Support Limited
(b) Related party transactions and balances
Transactions with the related parties during the current/previous year:
Nature of Transaction
Information technology operating costs:
CLP Business Management and Support Limited
Net expense reimbursed to:
Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited)
(Refer Note 1 below)
Sale of stores & spares:
Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP
India Private Limited)

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Year end

Ultimate holding company,
Holding company of AEPL Fellow subsidiaries
and Holding company

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

-

24.77
31.94

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

148.09
170.32

-

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

0.10

-
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(All amount in Rs. Million)
Year end

Ultimate holding company,
Holding company of AEPL Fellow subsidiaries
and Holding company

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

-

Balance outstanding at the year end

Payable:
Balance payable
CLP Business Management and Support Limited
Loan balance payable
Apraava Energy Private Limited

Equity component of compound financial instrument
Apraava Energy Private Limited

Equity component of corporate guarantee
Apraava Energy Private Limited
Outstanding bank and corporate guarantee received by
Company's bankers/lenders from
Apraava Energy Private Limited

6.97
7.93

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

2,347.33
2,120.44

-

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

3,473.02
3,473.02

-

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

209.28
209.28

-

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

5,573.00
6,143.00

-

Note:
(1) Includes Rs. 58.25 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 58.26), net of goods and service tax towards reimbursement of salary of key management
personnel in accordance with cost sharing agreement with Apraava Energy Private Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private Limited).
(c) Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel ( Company Secretary)
Particulars
Short term employee benefits*
Post employment benefits

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
5.97
5.94
0.42
0.39

* Does not include provisions for incremental gratuity and leave encashment liabilities, since the provisions are based on actuarial valuations
for the Company as a whole.
(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
0.61
1.35
Sitting fees and other reimbursements
(d) 100% equity shares and 100% CCPS of the Company is pledged against term loan and debentures which is held by Apraava Energy Private
Limited (formerly known as CLP India Private Limited).
(e) There were no loans/ advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMP's, related parties either severally or jointly with
any other person that are
(i). Repayable on demand, or
(ii). Without specifying any terms or period of repayment
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Note 36 : Schedule III disclosures
(A) Ageing schedule of Trade payables
(i) As on 31 March 2022:
Particulars

Not due

MSME
Others
Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others
Total

28.91
10,023.75
10,052.66

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
4.85
0.12
0.27
9.62
6.97
11.82
9.62
0.27
0.12

Total

33.76
10,040.73
10,074.49

(ii) As on 31 March 2021:
Particulars

Not due

MSME
Others
Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others
Total

12.34
3,142.25
3,154.59

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
39.09
0.29
0.77
39.09
0.29
0.77

Total

12.34
3,182.40
3,194.74

(B) Ageing schedule of Trade receivables
(i) As on 31 March 2022:
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Less than 6 Months

6 months – 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Total

More than 3 years

3,921.25

55.13

-

-

-

1.86

3,978.24

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

-

158.51

111.28

68.28

231.20

2,849.75

3,419.02

Disputed Trade receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

134.72

96.16

57.89

127.92

1,371.99

1,788.68

3,921.25
-

348.36
-

207.44
-

126.17
-

359.12
-

4,223.60
-

9,185.94
(1,788.68)
7,397.26

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable – credit impaired

Total
Provision
Total
(ii) As on 31 March 2021:
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receivable

Not due

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk

Less than 6 Months

Disputed Trade receivables – which have
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired
Total
Provision
Total

1-2 years

2-3 years

Total

More than 3 years

4,074.95

10.65

7.32

1.24

5.87

20.71

4,120.74

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27.80

31.19

37.09

213.17

320.76

2,534.55

3,164.56

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7.34

27.30

30.59

127.92

221.42

1,150.57

1,565.14

4,110.09
-

69.14
-

75.00
-

342.33
-

548.05
-

3,705.83
-

8,850.44
(1,565.14)
7,285.30

Undisputed Trade receivable – credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

6 months – 1 year

(All amount in Rs. Million)

(C) Ageing schedule of Capital work-in-progress
(i) As on 31 March 2022:
Particulars
Projects-in-progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Less than 1 year
1 -2 years
2 -3 years
More than 3 years
165.60
9.26
5.20
5.42
165.60
9.26
5.20
5.42

Details of projects which are overdue:
Particulars
Projects-in-progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Less than 1 year
28.05
-

To be completed in
1 -2 years
2 -3 years
-

Total
185.48
185.48

(All amount in Rs. Million)
More than 3 years
-

Total
28.05
-
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(ii) As on 31 March 2021:
Particulars
Projects-in-progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

(All amount in Rs. Million)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Less than 1 year
1 -2 years
2 -3 years
More than 3 years
57.04
22.74
14.48
0.48
57.04
22.74
14.48
0.48

Details of projects which are overdue:
Particulars
Projects-in-progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Less than 1 year
23.40
-

To be completed in
1 -2 years
2 -3 years
10.50
-

Total
94.74
94.74

(All amount in Rs. Million)
More than 3 years
-

Total
33.90
-

109

Jhajjar Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Note 36 : Schedule III disclosures
(D). Ratios Disclosure
Particulars
Current ratio
Debt- Equity Ratio
Debt Service Coverage ratio

Return on Equity ratio

Numerator

Denominator

Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Shareholder’s Equity
Total Debt
Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = Interest & Lease
profit after taxes + Non-cash
Payments + Principal
operating expenses + Interest
Repayments

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Variance

1.45
0.86
1.41

1.52
1.02
1.09

-5%
-15%
29%

Net Profits after taxes –
Preference Dividend

Average Shareholder’s Equity

(2.77)

4.60

-160%

Inventory Turnover ratio

Cost of material consumed

Average Inventory

6.92

3.42

103%

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio

Revenue from operations

Average Trade Receivable

4.69

3.25

44%

Net credit purchases = Gross
credit purchases - purchase
return
Net sales = Total sales - sales
return
Net Profit after tax

Average Trade Payables

3.75

3.52

6%

Working capital = Current
assets – Current liabilities
Revenue from Operations

4.93

4.42

11%

(2.00)

4.71

-142%

-83%

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio

Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Investment

Earnings before interest and
taxes

Capital Employed = Tangible
Net Worth + Total Debt +
Deferred Tax liability

2.59

15.50

Interest (Finance Income)

Investment*

NA

NA

(All amount in Rs. Million)
Reason for variance
(exceeding 25%)
Higher operational earnings and
reduction of debt has resulted an
improvement in the ratio
Due to impairment on property, plant
and equipment in current year return
on equity is negative.
Higher coal consumption due to
higher plant load factor and lower
coal inventory as at year end has
resulted an improvement in the ratio
Higher electricity revenue in current
year due to higher plant load factor
has resulted an improvement in the
ratio

Due to impairment on property, plant
and equipment in current year net
profit ratio is negative.
Due to impairment in current year
return on capital employed ratio has
decreased significantly.

0%

*Note - No investments as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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Note 37: Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
As at
31 March 2022
A. Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Contingent Liabilities (Refer Note below)

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
31 March 2021

8,039.71

7,076.79

(1) Haryana Power Generation Corporation Limited (“HPGCL”) had initiated a bidding process for selection of developers to implement and operate a coal based 1320 MW
power plant at District Jhajjar, Haryana (“Project”) under the tariff based competitive bidding mechanism, through the state distribution licensees of Haryana. CLP Power India
Private Limited (CLPIPL), the promoter, was selected as the successful bidder and the Project was implemented by the Company, a subsidiary of CLPIPL.
The land required for setting up the project was acquired by Government of Haryana under the provisions of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894. The compensation was determined
and paid to the land owners by the said Government.
(i) Some of the land owners from whom the land was acquired have filed references and review petitions under Section 18 and Section 28-A the Land Acquisition Act, 1894
(The Act) against the Government of Haryana and made the Company co–defendant seeking enhancement of the compensation as determined by the competent authority under
the Act. The Hon’ble District Court of Jhajjar, Haryana enhanced the compensation along with interest vide orders dated 30 March 2013, 29 April 2013, 30 May 2013 and 5
April 2014 for the respective claims filed by land owners. JPL has Regular First Appeals (RFAs) before the High Court of Punjab & Haryana (Hight Court), along with the
prayer to allow stay on the order passed by District court in relation to disbursement of an enhanced compensation. In parallel to RFAs filed by JPL, certain land owners have
also filed RFAs challenging the District Court’s order with the prayer to allow further enhancement in the compensation amount allowed by the District Court. The Hon’ble High
Court has dismissed one of the appeals upholding the enhanced compensation awarded by the District Court. However, High Court set aside interest imposed by the District
Court, since its contrary to law. JPL has filed Special Leave Petitions (SLPs) before the Supreme Court of India (SLP) challenging the judgments of the High Court of Punjab &
Haryana and the District Court, Jhajjar. The payment of the enhanced compensation is stayed by the Supreme Court of India on 24 March 2014. In the remaining three appeals,
on 13 November 2014, the Hon’ble High Court, granting stay of the lower court’s orders, adjourned the matters as long as the Company’s SLP pending before Supreme Court is
finally decided.
(ii) During the pendency of the above SLPs, certain land owners have also filed transfer petitions before the Supreme Court with the prayer to transfer their RFAs which are still
pending before the High Court, to the Supreme Court with an intent that said RFAs can be decided along with SLPs filed by JPL. However, JPL has submitted its counter
affidavits and has taken an objection to said transfer petitions filed by the land owners. These transfer petitions are still pending before the Supreme Court, to date.
(iii) Some of the land owners who were not a party to the petition filed in District Court filed a review petition u/s 28(A) of Land Acquisition Act 1894 with Land Acquisition
Collector, Jhajjar for review of the compensation originally awarded on the basis of the award passed by the District court. The matter was heard on 30 December 2014 when
District Officer was informed of the stay orders passed by Supreme Court in JPL’s SLP. In light of the stay orders granted by the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the review petitions
are also adjourned as long as the Company’s SLP is finally decided."

(iv) Some land owners from whom the right of use was acquired for laying down of underground water pipelines as per the “Haryana Underground Pipelines (Acquisition of
Right of User in Land ), Act 2009” have filed petitions in the District Court of Jhajjar, Haryana against the Government of Haryana and JPL seeking enhanced compensation.
The District Court has enhanced the compensation vide Orders dated 24 December 2014 and 19 January 2015 for the respective claims filed by land owners. The Company has
filed appeals against these orders before the Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High Court. On 1 September 2015, the Court has stayed the orders of the District Court in light of
Supreme Court’s stay order.
(v) Some land owners from whom the land was acquired for laying down of railway line and setting up of air valves have filed petitions in the District Court of Jhajjar, Haryana
against the Government of Haryana and JPL seeking enhanced compensation. The District Court has enhanced the compensation vide Orders dated 17 October 2015 and 23
November 2015. The Company has challenged these orders by filing appeals before the Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High Court where the Hon'ble Court was pleased to order
that execution proceedings, if any, be stayed till the final disposal of the appeals.
Management has ascertained that the impact of enhanced compensation liability based on the said orders amounts to approximately Rs 951.04 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 905.23)
Under the bidding document for the Project, the obligation to obtain the land was on the Government of Haryana. Also, in all the pending litigations, the Government of Haryana
is the first respondent. Hence, if the case is decided in favor of the land owners, the liability to pay the enhanced compensation will be on the Government of Haryana and not on
the Company.
Further during the bidding for the Project, the request for proposal had mentioned the tentative Declared Price of Land (compensation amount) at Rs. 3,200. The Power Purchase
Agreement (“PPA”) provides that any increase in the declared price of Land after the bid date will be considered as a change in law and that the Company will be protected from
any adverse effect on its economic position as follows:
“For every cumulative increase of each Rs. 160 in the Capital Cost over the Construction Period, Non Escalable Capacity Charges shall be increased by 0.267%.”
The Punjab & Haryana High Court (High Court) through its order dated 21 March 2022 dismissed all pending Regular First Appeals filed by landowners, without any
enhancement in land compensation whereas with respect to Four Writ Petitions in reference to the land acquired for underground water pipeline, the High Court has held that, for
accessing the enhancement in compensation, the gap has to be calculated up to the date of section 4 notification i.e. 05 November 2009 and not till date of collector’s award i.e.
12 March 2010 from the date of enforcement of policy i.e 22 March 2007. Accordingly, as per the High Court order the additional monetary liability will be amounting to ₹
60,725 per acre, which is ₹ 3.9 for the entire land acquired. Further, JPL has filed a caveat on 13 April 2022 before Hon’ble Supreme Court for all the 230 matters, as the
landowners may challenge the High Court order. In the event Company is required to pay such increased price for the project land to the land litigants, then this cost will be a
pass through under the PPA as a change in law. Hence, there would be no effect on the financial position of the Company. Although, the High Court has passed its order (as
stated above), this order may be challenged by the Landowners before the Supreme Court. Therefore, total amount of claim including Interest with respect to land acquisition
continue to stand at Rs 951.04 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 905.23). Based upon a legal opinion obtained by independent external counsels, the management believes that the Company
has a strong case on merits (on facts as well as law) and thus no provision has been made for respective amount at this stage.

(2). Disputes with Haryana Discoms and Tata Power Distribution Company Limited amounting to Rs. 8,226.72 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 7,334.79) and Rs. 401.91 (31 March 2021 :
Rs. 401.91) respectively.
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The Company has disputes with Uttar Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited and Dakshin Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (both referred here as 'Haryana Discoms') relating
to (a) date of commercial operation of Unit 1 impacting applicable rate of capacity charges, (b) application of Unscheduled Interchange charges as per the Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2009, (c) penalty for lower than threshold availability, (d) payment of capacity charges for the availability
lost due to delay in approving procurement of alternate coal by the Haryana Discoms, (e) payment of coal transit loss, and (f) payment of railway staff charges, bank guarantee
charges and other costs incurred in the purchase and transportation of coal. As at 31 March 2021, the total amount under dispute with Haryana Discoms and TPTCL is Rs.
8,298.63 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 7,406.70) out of which Rs. 5,157.85 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 4,678.84) is included under trade receivable and Rs. 3,140.77 (31 March 2021 :
2,727.86) is on account of claim by Haryana Discom against unscheduled interchange charges. In respect of the stated disputes, the Company filed a petition with Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission (‘CERC’) against the Haryana Discoms and pursuant to a direction by the CERC, Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited (‘TPDDL’) and
Tata Power Trading Company Limited (‘TPTCL’) were also impleaded. TPDDL also filed a petition against the Company claiming transmission charges purportedly incurred by
it in Financial Year 2012-13 amounting to Rs. 330.00 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 330.00) owing to the low availability achieved by the Company in that year. Vide order dated 25
January 2016, the CERC has awarded its decision in respect of the said disputes. The disputes mentioned in (a) above amounting to Rs. 2,074.80 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 2,074.80)
has been decided in favour of the Company. For the dispute referred in (b) above, CERC has also upheld Company’s contention for application of Unscheduled Interchange
charges. For disputes referred in (c) to (f) above amounting to Rs. 3,083.05 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 2,604.04), CERC has decided that the Company is eligible for reimbursement
of coal transit losses and other costs and the matter should be mutually settled with the Haryana Discom and referred to the Commission for approval. For the purpose of
payment of capacity charges and application of penalty, the CERC has decided that Company is assumed to have achieved availability of 55.05% against actual availability of
31.05% and that prayed for of 75.56%.

In respect of (c), (e) and (f) above, the Company has made a provision of Rs. 1,788.68 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 1,565.14) on a prudent basis. In light of the CERC order, the
Company has raised a claim of Rs. 22,598.00 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 19,599.00) and Rs. 494.00 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 448.00) with Haryana Discoms and TPTCL respectively
towards capacity charges, refund of penalty deducted, surcharge and delayed payment charges. The Haryana Discoms have filed an appeal to the Appellate Tribunal for
Electricity ('APTEL') against the said CERC order hence no adjustment has been made in the books of account with respect to claims made with Haryana Discoms and TPTCL.
The Company has also filed an appeal with the APTEL against the order of the CERC dated 25 January 2016 to the limited extent for considering the Plant's technical
availability of 75.56% in FY 2012-13 as availability achieved for the purpose of computation of capacity charges and penalty. TPDDL has also filed an appeal against the same
order seeking refund of transmission charges. In respect of the petition filed by TPDDL against the Company, the CERC through its order dated 18 April 2016 held that the
Company is not liable to pay transmission charges to TPDDL and directed TPDDL and TPTCL to pay capacity charges and refund the excess penalty deducted by it to the
Company assuming the Company’s availability as 55.05%. No adjustment has been made in the books of account by the management till the case is finally decided. Final
hearing of all the cross appeals was held before the APTEL on 16 June 2020, wherein all the parties have duly filed their final written submissions. The matter was reserved for
final order. However, due to the retirement of the Technical Member before the order could be pronounced, the appeals are now to be taken up for final hearing again before a
reconstituted bench. As per the latest directions of the APTEL Bench, the matters were listed for hearing on various occasions but was adjourned due to lack of quorum. The
Company has mentioned the matter before the APTEL and emphasized on the need of hearing the matter considering it was heard previously and had been reserved for order.
In light of the fact that the CERC vide its order dated 25 January 2016 and 18 April 2016 has substantially ruled in favour of the Company, the management is of the view that it
has a sustainable case in APTEL and accordingly, no additional provision is required to be recorded in the books of account.

(3). The Company has been party to certain Income Tax litigations arising on account of disallowance of the deduction for on account of lower of unabsorbed depreciation and
brought forward losses of ₹ 1064.95 and raised a demand of INR 248.72 for A.Y. 2018-2019. The disallowance has been made on account of different approach (Year on Year
vs Aggregate basis) being used by the AO in computing the unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses. The Company has filed appeal before CIT(A) and believes that
there is no guidance under Income Tax Act,1961 to follow any particular treatment and further, basis the various judicial precedents the Company believes that the disallowance
is not sustainable.

B. Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (net of advances)

(All amount in Rs. Million)
As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2022
324.63

283.28

Note 38:
Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) have been determined based on the information
available with the Company and the required disclosures are given below:
Particulars
(a) amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:(i) the principal amount; and
(ii) the interest due thereon

For the year ended
31 March 2022
33.76
-

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021
12.34
-

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

-

-

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

-

-

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
and

-

-

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

-

-
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Note 39: Auditors’ Remuneration (including goods and service tax)
As auditor :
Audit Fees
Out of Pocket Expenses & Taxes
Total

For the year ended
31 March 2022
6.31
0.02
6.33

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
31 March 2021
5.33
0.07
5.40

Note 40 : Corporate social responsibility
Under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, atleast 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the
three immediately preceding financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), pursuant to its policy in this regard.

Particulars
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year
c) Amount spent and paid during the year
Particulars of amount spent and paid during the year:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On Purpose other than (i) above
Total
Particulars
Opening Balance
- With Company
- In separate CSR Unspent Account
Provision created during the year
Amount spent/provision utilised during the year
- From Company's bank account
- From separate CSR Unspent Account
Closing Balance
- With Company
- In separate CSR Unspent Account

(All amount in Rs. Million)
For the year ended
For the year ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
42.54
39.83
39.83
42.54
40.44
43.09

10.96
29.48
40.44
For the year ended
31 March 2022

17.96
25.13
43.09
For the year ended
31 March 2021

8.09
40.44

42.54

24.17
8.09

35.00

16.27

8.09

Reason for unspent amount

The amount pertains to ongoing projects and will be
utilised in due course.

Nature of CSR activities

Promoting education and sports, environment
sustainability,COVID-19
relief
and
rural
development projects , tree plantation and
development and sanitation and hygiene.

Note 41 : Disclosure on Impairment of Property plant and equipment and intangible assets:
The management’s view on the long-term outlook of Jhajjar Power Plant (“Jhajjar”) as a CGU has changed because of, it is unlikely that Jhajjar’s power purchase agreements
with off takers will be renewed after their expiry in year 2037. Further, the prolonged judicial process for a final verdict on the petitions filed at Appellate Tribunal for Electricity
(“APTEL”) has resulted in delayed realisation of substantial part of receivables. Consequent to this the impairment testing was carried out, Rs. 43,945 million was the
recoverable amount of the Jhajjar CGU as at 31 December 2021. This value has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management. An impairment provision of Rs. 2,803 million was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil). This
impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of Jhajjar (cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on the “value in use” approach, in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 36, Impairment of Assets. In forecasting cash flows, management has restricted the time
period to the contractual power purchase agreement period.
The discount rates used in the model represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to Jhajjar. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances
of the Company and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of
equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the Company’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings that the company is obliged to
service. An estimated pre-tax discount rate of 11.13% was used in estimating Jhajjar’s value in use.
Estimates of coal price inflation is based on latest available market data, as per Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) as coal price is a pass-through cost which doesn’t have any
major impact on the cashflows. Other material and services inflation rate is based on best estimates which management believes and factored in the cash flows.
The amount of impairment loss of Rs. 2,803 million is shown as exceptional item in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Note 42 : In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. The Company has adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to
protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption.
For the financial year 2021 - 2022 there was no major impact on the company’s operations due to COVID-19. Management continues to monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions and the impact thereof on the Company, if any. The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of generation and sale of electricity. Since
electricity has been categorised as an essential service, the Company is in a position to generate and supply electricity to its customers as the generation sites are operational. The
Company has taken adequate measures such as issuing social distancing norms, managing workforce shifts and remote working, etc. to counter this pandemic.
Management has carried out a detailed assessment of its liquidity position earlier in the year and is keeping watch on its liquidity position on regular basis, it has also carried out
the assessment for recoverability of carrying values of Property, Plant & Equipment and Trade Receivables and no major concerns were found. Based on the Company's liquidity
position at 31 March 2022 and review of cash flow projections over the next twelve months, management believes the Company will have sufficient liquidity to operate its
businesses in the ordinary course.
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Management believes that it has taken into account all the known impacts arising from COVID 19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. However, the impact
assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. Management will continue to monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions and the impact thereof on the Company, if any. The eventual outcome of the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the Company's business may be
different from that estimated as on the date of approval of the financial statements by shareholders of the Company.
Note 43 : In February 2019, Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under
Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. There are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such the Company does not consider that there
is any probable obligations for past periods. Accordingly, based on evaluation the Company has made a provision for provident fund contribution on prospective
basis.
Note 44 : During the year ended March 2017, the Company could not meet the minimum offtake quantity obligation with its coal suppliers due to lower than threshold power
dispatches sought by its customers, HPPC and TPTCL. The agreement with the suppliers stipulate a charge in case of a shortfall in minimum offtake quantity and simultaneously
the power purchase agreement with the customers stipulates such a charge being a ""pass-through"" in case the shortfall is due to lower than threshold power dispatches sought
by its customers. The Company has made a provision of ₹ 164.63 in previous year towards such charge, consequent to completion of reconciliation with one of the suppliers,
Eastern Coalfields Limited. Moreover, the Company accounted for a corresponding unbilled revenue in previous year which was subsequently billed and recovered in current
year, except for ₹ 18.36 due from TPTCL which is billed but not yet recovered.
During the year ended March 2018 reconciliation with Bharat Coking Coal Limited has been completed in respect of year ended 31 March 2017 as mentioned above, the
Company paid ₹ 182.96 towards the relevant charges. Subsequently, the Company billed and recovered this amount from its customers, except for ₹ 20.41 due from TPTCL
which is billed but not yet recovered. There is no impact of these transactions on previous year's profit / net assets of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020, reconciliations with Northern Coalfields Limited has been completed in respect of year ended 31 March 2017 as
mentioned above, the Company paid ₹ 51.20 and ₹ 19.03 respectively towards the relevant charges. Subsequently, the Company billed and recovered this amount from its
customers, except for ₹ 7.83 due from TPTCL which is billed but not yet recovered. There is no impact of these transactions on current year's profit / net assets of the Company.
During the year ended March 2021, the Company paid Rs. 12.35 to Eastern Coalfields Limited towards the service tax on compensation against payment under Sabka Vikas
Scheme, 2019. Subsequently, the Company billed and recovered this amount from its customers, except for Rs. 1.38 due from TPTCL which is billed but not yet recovered.
There is no impact of these transactions on previous year's profit / net assets of the Company.
Further, the Company has filed petition before CERC dated 8 August 2019, seeking reimbursements of the amounts paid by the Company to coal vendors. As per PPA, Company
is entitled to claim such penalties payable/paid to coal companies from customers i.e. HPPC and TPTCL. The matter was listed for admission hearing on 5 May 2020 and the
CERC admitted the petition for hearing and issued notice on the petition. The Company has filed an additional affidavit before CERC to bring on record the necessary
documents in relation to the claim on 26 October 2021.
As at 31 March 2022, the Company has recorded a receivable amounting to ₹ 47.98 from its customer (TPTCL) on the account of the above mentioned matter. The management
is of the view that this amount is recoverable and hence, no provision is required to be recorded in the books of account.

Note 45: Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
(ii) The Company do note have any immovable properties whose title deeds are:
- not held in the name of Company, or
- held jointly with others
(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall:
- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(viii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) During the year, the Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The Company is required to submit return to its
banks for drawing power on the basis of security of current assets (inventory and trade receivables). With respect to quarterly statements, it has submitted details of stock of
stores and spares (within 6 months old) although there is no restriction to consider the stock on basis of ageing as per sanction letter of the bank. For purpose of reporting of
figure of stock, the Company has considered the stock older than six months for essential and vital items because such stock is considered as pre-requisite to the operations of
plant. Refer table below:
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